
409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

NOTICE OF REGULAR 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

2:00 P.M. WEDNESDAY, JUNE 21, 2023

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Ed Lee, President; Bruce Kuebler, Vice President; Jack Curtis, Director; Nathan Rosser, Director; Peggy Wiles, Director 

The meeting will be held in person and via Zoom by phone & video conference. The meeting will be 
recorded. To attend/listen to the meeting please call Toll Free US 1 (888) 788-0099 or 1 (877) 853-5247 

Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151 Password: 964370 Zoom Link: Zoom Link

AGENDA 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER & FLAG SALUTE

2. PUBLIC COMMENT – FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (LIMIT 5 MIN / PER PERSON)

3. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. MINUTES MAY 10, 2023
B. PAYMENTS & CHECKS FOR APRIL & MAY 2023; FINANCIALS FOR MARCH & APRIL 2023

4. CUSTOMER REQUEST TO WAIVE SEPARATE SERVICE LATERAL REQUIREMENT FOR AN
ADDITIONAL DWELLING UNIT

5. ADOPTION OF FINAL 2023-24 BUDGET, SALARY RANGE SCHEDULE AND 10-YEAR CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

6. AUTHORIZATION TO PREPARE A CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT WITH CASITAS MUTUAL WATER
COMPANY

7. RESOLUTION 2023-355 ADOPTION OF WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN

8. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE INCREASE AND TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2023-356 SETTING A PUBLIC
HEARING TO INCREASE BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S COMPENSATION

9. AMENDMENTS TO PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING CONTRACT
A. RENEWAL OF CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT
B. REDISTRIBUTION OF UNSPENT FUNDS FROM THE SUBCONSULTANT FEE PROPOSALS
C. SEPARATE TICO PROJECT FROM THE 2023 WATER PROJECTS

10. UPCOMING BOARD VACANCY

11. DISCUSSION OF CHANGING BOARD MEETING TIME (REQUESTED BY DIRECTOR KUEBLER)

12. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED
A. UPDATE ON THE UVRGA- BRUCE KUEBLER

13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON WATER & DISTRICT STATUS UPDATE

14. OLD & NEW BUSINESS

15. CLOSED SESSION
The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss the following item:
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION
(Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Gov. Code § 54956.9) Name of case: Santa Barbara Channelkeeper v.
State Water Resources Control Board, et al., Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. 19STCP01176
(formerly San Francisco County Superior Court Case No. CPF-14-513875)

If you require special accommodation for attendance at or participation in this meeting, please notify our 
office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-3403 (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

Right to be heard: Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item of interest to the public, which is within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. The request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board’s consideration of 
the item. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by subdivision 
(b) of 54954.2 of the Government Code and except that members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements
made or questions posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the Government Code.



THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 2 of 112



Page 1 of 2 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING MAY 10, 2023 

Directors present were: Bruce Kuebler, Ed Lee, and Peggy Wiles. Directors Curtis and Rosser were absent. 
Also present were Attorney Stuart Nielson, General Manager/Board Secretary Bert Rapp, Assistant 
General Manager Alma Quezada, Office Manager Emily Arnbrister, and Office Assistant Nichole Ochoa. 
Public Present: Carl Enson, Mary Wood and one other member of the public. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - President Ed Lee called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. Flag salute
led by Bruce Kuebler.
.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA) – Carl Enson requested an update on
Solar Installation, an update was given by General Manager Bert Rapp.

3. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. MINUTES APRIL 19, 2023

Bruce Kuebler moved for approval of the minutes for April 19, 2023, seconded by Peggy Wiles and the 
motion carried 3-0. 

4. PUBLIC HEARING - PROPOSED WATER RATE INCREASE: Assistant General Manager, Alma
Quezada provided an overview of the components of the proposed water rates to cover increasing
water supply costs, operating and maintenance expenses, capital infrastructure maintenance and
improvements, and regulatory requirements.
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED AT 2:06 PM.
The following person provided public testimony: Mary Wood. Bert Rapp, the Board Secretary counted
14 protests notices received and stated that a total of 1,089 protest notices would be needed to halt
the proposed rates.
PRESIDENT ED LEE CLOSED THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 2:39PM.
Recommended Action: 1) Adopt amended resolution 2023-353 to approve the amended Appendix I
of the Rules and Regulations, including the water rate increases. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of
the recommended action, seconded by Bruce Kuebler and the motion carried 3-0.

5. UPDATE TO PERSONNEL POLICY: The District’s current Personnel Policy limits employee
contributions to CalPERS and does not align with the anticipated required fiscal employee member
rates. Changes to employee contribution limits will allow for fluctuation based on CalPERS limits.
Clarifying changes to 3490.8 allows for use of PTO anytime of the year due to financial hardship. Public
Comment: None. Recommended Action: 1) Approve changes to section 3505.3 of the Personnel
Policy 2) Approve clarifying language changes to section 3490.8 of the Personnel Policy.  Bruce
Kuebler moved for approval of the recommended action, seconded by Peggy Wiles and the motion
carried 3-0.

6. ADOPTION OF UPDATED BOARD BYLAWS:  General Counsel, Stuart Nielson presented an
updated version of the bylaws to the Board based on board feedback. Public Comment: None.
Recommended Action: 1) Approve resolution 2023-354. Bruce Kuebler moved for approval of the
recommended action, seconded by Peggy Wiles and the motion carried 3-0.

7. FY 23/24 SECOND DRAFT BUDGET & BUDGET TRANSFER #5: The second draft of the 23/24
budget was presented. Budget transfer #5 is necessary to stay within budget for accounts #60004,
State Payroll Taxes and #60020, Meter Replacement & Maintenance. Public Comment: None.
Recommended Action:  1) Review and comment on the second draft budget 2) Approve Budget
Transfer #5 in the amount of $15,060. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of the recommended action,
seconded by Bruce Kuebler and the motion carried 3-0.

Agenda Packet - Page 3 of 112



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

8. CONSERVATION BANNERS: Conservation banners ideas were presented to the board to be 
displayed during both the summertime and rainy periods. Public Comment: None. Recommended 
Action:  1) Review and comment on the banners 2) Approval of all proposed banners except #1 and 
#3 to be printed. Peggy Wiles moved for approval of the recommended action, seconded by Bruce 
Kuebler and the motion carried 3-0. 
 

9. BOARD REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED & UPDATE ON THE UPPER VENTURA RIVER 
GROUNDWATER AGENCY (UVRGA) - BRUCE KUEBLER: The UVRGA’s Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan was approved. There was no UVRGA meeting to report.  
 

10. WATER & DISTRICT UPDATE: The static aquifer level at Well #2 on May 1, 2023, was at elevation 
550.5, decreasing 3.4 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is currently 16.3 feet above the 35-
year average for May 1st. Well #1 is pumping 1,107 GPM, up 37 GPM from last month. Well #7 is 
pumping 983 GPM, up 38 GPM from last month. Well #2, #3, #4 & #6 were offline in April. Supplemental 
Casitas water was not purchased. Sales dollars billed on April 30, 2023, amounted to $97,819, under 
budget by $76,809 for April. Water sold in April 2023 amounted to 13,279 HCF, a decrease of 67% 
below the 40,335 HCF sold in April 2013. On May 1, 2023, Lake Casitas level was at 72.6% of full 
capacity at an elevation of 540.28 feet. The lake has increased 7.6% since last month.  
 

11. OLD & NEW BUSINESS: President Ed Lee directed that no regular meeting be held May 17, 2023.   
 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION – No executive session was held. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 3:43 pm. 
 
 
Attested:  
 
 

_____________________________     
Bert J. Rapp, Secretary       

Agenda Packet - Page 4 of 112



Date Vendor Description Amount

5/1/23 CALPERS 457 3,375.00$         

5/3/23 WRIGHT FUEL Fuel 1,577.23$         

5/5/23 MATILIJA WATER Office Water 24.24$              

5/9/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.77$              

5/10/23 MECHANICS BANK Analysis Charges 686.20$            

5/15/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 7,947.80$         

5/15/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,256.64$         

5/15/23 TIAA Ricoh Printer 175.64$            

5/15/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$              

5/15/23 VANCO Bank Check Elimination 81.55$              

5/16/23 ACWA Health Insurance 11,586.48$      

5/16/23 SCE Electric Bill 8,360.69$         

5/16/23 CALPERS UAL- Classic 3,934.58$         

5/16/23 CALPERS 457 3,375.00$         

5/16/23 CALPERS Classic 2,610.90$         

5/16/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,153.44$         

5/16/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 617.50$            

5/16/23 CALPERS UAL- PEPRA 162.75$            

5/16/23 IVR Robocalls 74.90$              

5/17/23 AT&T Mobile Phones 419.52$            

5/19/23 CHASE Credit Card Charges 2,653.67$         

5/22/23 IVR Robocalls 83.66$              

5/25/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.00$              

5/31/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 8,263.13$         

5/31/23 CALPERS Classic 2,670.65$         

5/31/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,221.51$         

5/31/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$              

5/31/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 10.00$              

Total Online A/P Payments 64,667.45$      

Check Number Vendor Reason Amount

None

Online A/P Payment Transactions - May 2023

Voided Checks

Agenda Packet - Page 5 of 112



Page: 16/14/23 Ventura River Water District
11:24:21 AM

Check Dates: 5/1/2023 to 5/31/2023

AP Check Register (Current by Bank)

Status*Date AmountVendor ID Payee NameCheck No.

BANK ID:  RBOGEN - OPERATING ACCOUNT 10005

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17672 P05/15/23 $86.2210197

AQUA-FLO SUPPLY17673 P05/15/23 $102.25300

BARTLETT, PRINGLE AND WOLF LLP17674 P05/15/23 $13,000.0010107

COUNTY OF VENTURA17675 P05/15/23 $3,961.061011

COUNTY OF VENTURA17676 P05/15/23 $390.001020

DATA PROSE17677 P05/15/23 $1,066.4210111

E J HARRISON & SONS, INC17678 P05/15/23 $157.621300

FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.17679 P05/15/23 $1,623.351390

FGL, INC.17680 P05/15/23 $438.001393

KELLY CLEANING & SUPPLIES17681 P05/15/23 $290.001730

LAFCO17682 P05/15/23 $2,400.001775

LAFCO17683 P05/15/23 $5,450.001776

MARSHA MACDONALD17684 P05/15/23 $806.06MMACD

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17685 P05/15/23 $46.091950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17686 P05/15/23 $1,440.112025

NELSON COMIS KETTLE & KINNEY,17687 P05/15/23 $4,225.0010204

OJAI TRUE VALUE17688 P05/15/23 $21.4410127

OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT17689 P05/15/23 $120.902400

PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC17690 P05/15/23 $5,662.502625

QUINN COMPANY17691 P05/15/23 $906.6910065

SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC SYSTEMS USA17692 P05/15/23 $1,329.063015

CARMEN MURILLO17693 P05/15/23 $2,300.0010072

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL17694 P05/15/23 $60.0010118

USA BLUE BOOK17695 P05/15/23 $91.633575

Ventura Energy17696 P05/15/23 $3,420.0010200

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE17697 P05/15/23 $19,820.0010163

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17698 P05/31/23 $74.4710197

BADGER METER17699 P05/31/23 $2,600.6310094

CRAIG LEE17700 P05/31/23 $116.2510046

DIAL SECURITY17701 P05/31/23 $325.001268

FAMCON PIPE & SUPPLY, INC.17702 P05/31/23 $4,138.771390

FGL, INC.17703 P05/31/23 $479.001393

JW PLUMBING SERVICE17704 P05/31/23 $475.0010205

MCCROMETER, INC.17705 P05/31/23 $1,034.471945

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17706 P05/31/23 $68.221950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17707 P05/31/23 $72.002025

OJAI TRUE VALUE17708 P05/31/23 $15.6410127

ROCK LONG'S AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE17709 P05/31/23 $192.462850

SPARLING INSTRUMENTS17710 P05/31/23 $1,850.0010152

VENTURA COUNTY PWA17711 P05/31/23 $15,400.0010060

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE17712 P05/31/23 $371.2510163

BANK RBOGEN REGISTER TOTAL: $96,427.56

GRAND TOTAL : $96,427.56

* Check Status Types: "P" - Printed  ; "M" - Manual ; "V" - Void ( Void Date ); "A" - Application; "E" - EFT
** Denotes broken check sequence. Agenda Packet - Page 6 of 112



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  4/1/2023 Through 4/30/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

 Revenues

$95,749.26 $174,628.00 )$(78,878.74 %)(45.2 $1,702,628.23 $2,178,126.00 )$(475,497.77 %)(21.8WATER SALES

0.00 83.33 )(83.33 )(100.0 3,668.53 833.30 2,835.23 340.2SERVICE INSTALLATION

2,070.00 1,400.00 670.00 47.9 18,735.00 14,000.00 4,735.00 33.8DELINQUENT FEES

2,500.00 2,666.67 )(166.67 )(6.3 90,784.00 26,666.70 64,117.30 240.4CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES

%)(18.2%)(43.9Total Revenues $178,778.00 )$(403,810.24$2,219,626.00$1,815,815.76)$(78,458.74$100,319.26

 Operating Expenses

10,326.55 12,000.00 1,673.45 13.9 96,397.80 120,000.00 23,602.20 19.7WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES

10,705.33 10,705.33 0.00 0.0 107,053.30 107,053.30 0.00 0.0UVRGA PUMP FEE

56,627.20 64,705.92 8,078.72 12.5 616,493.73 647,059.20 30,565.47 4.7SALARIES

7,167.44 6,470.58 )(696.86 )(10.8 67,231.61 64,705.80 )(2,525.81 )(3.9PTO & SICK

4,844.82 4,950.00 105.18 2.1 47,048.72 49,500.00 2,451.28 5.0SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE

0.00 83.33 83.33 100.0 1,056.95 833.30 )(223.65 )(26.8STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT)

9,105.49 9,918.58 813.09 8.2 90,166.74 99,185.80 9,019.06 9.1PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

11,586.48 12,000.00 413.52 3.4 116,115.95 120,000.00 3,884.05 3.2GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

1,041.51 2,333.33 1,291.82 55.4 9,606.58 23,333.30 13,726.72 58.8WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

6,825.25 5,981.92 )(843.33 )(14.1 55,770.22 59,819.20 4,048.98 6.8LIABILITY INSURANCE

1,000.00 1,083.33 83.33 7.7 9,380.00 10,833.30 1,453.30 13.4BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION

10,204.47 10,953.75 749.28 6.8 98,154.98 109,537.50 11,382.52 10.4CONTRACT LABOR

11,666.64 5,958.33 )(5,708.31 )(95.8 53,999.76 59,583.30 5,583.54 9.4PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft)

0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00 100.0 14,401.97 18,000.00 3,598.03 20.0FUEL

522.92 833.33 310.41 37.2 3,590.19 8,333.30 4,743.11 56.9VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

23,313.19 5,650.00 )(17,663.19 )(312.6 60,386.12 56,500.00 )(3,886.12 )(6.9OFFICE MAINTENANCE

9,352.88 4,583.33 )(4,769.55 )(104.1 41,597.75 45,833.30 4,235.55 9.2FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

2,272.73 6,898.92 4,626.19 67.1 88,911.14 68,989.20 )(19,921.94 )(28.9METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE

35.14 416.67 381.53 91.6 298.66 4,166.70 3,868.04 92.8EQUIPMENT RENTAL

4,554.55 7,916.67 3,362.12 42.5 69,074.03 79,166.70 10,092.67 12.7WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

650.78 1,416.67 765.89 54.1 8,449.35 14,166.70 5,717.35 40.4DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL

0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 0.00 291,666.70 291,666.70 100.0DEPRECIATION

%19.6%11.7Total Operating Expenses $205,826.66 $403,081.05$2,058,266.60$1,655,185.55$24,023.29$181,803.37

 General & Administrative Expenses

9,644.30 12,083.33 2,439.03 20.2 100,267.44 120,833.30 20,565.86 17.0UTILITIES

1,060.32 1,191.67 131.35 11.0 9,392.15 11,916.70 2,524.55 21.2TELEPHONE & INTERNET

131.67 134.67 3.00 2.2 1,316.70 1,346.70 30.00 2.2LAFCO FEES

946.60 1,200.00 253.40 21.1 8,058.43 12,000.00 3,941.57 32.8BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS

1,850.08 2,083.33 233.25 11.2 18,024.89 20,833.30 2,808.41 13.5MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS

344.00 1,200.00 856.00 71.3 3,656.31 12,000.00 8,343.69 69.5PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 3,156.63 3,333.30 176.67 5.3LEGAL NOTICES & NEWSLETTERS

0.00 341.67 341.67 100.0 0.00 3,416.70 3,416.70 100.0ELECTIONS

58.00 416.67 358.67 86.1 283.82 4,166.70 3,882.88 93.2DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION

289.00 416.67 127.67 30.6 3,279.50 4,166.70 887.20 21.3SECURITY

Agenda Packet - Page 7 of 112



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  4/1/2023 Through 4/30/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

985.06 1,083.33 98.27 9.1 8,709.17 10,833.30 2,124.13 19.6POSTAGE

1,267.42 1,416.67 149.25 10.5 14,017.22 14,166.70 149.48 1.1OFFICE SUPPLIES

47.21 4,583.33 4,536.12 99.0 4,711.44 45,833.30 41,121.86 89.7VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 0.00 3,333.30 3,333.30 100.0BAD DEBT EXPENSE

3,630.00 3,333.33 )(296.67 )(8.9 18,907.44 33,333.30 14,425.86 43.3CONSERVATION

%35.7%32.8Total General & Administrative Expenses $30,151.33 $107,732.16$301,513.30$193,781.14$9,897.67$20,253.66

%21.6Total Expenses $202,057.03 $33,920.96 %14.4$235,977.99 $1,848,966.69 $2,359,779.90 $510,813.21

Income (Loss) from Operations )$(101,737.77 )$(57,199.99 )$(44,537.78 %)(77.9 %76.3$107,002.97)$(140,153.90)$(33,150.93

 Other Income (Expense)

$21,311.72 $4,166.67 $17,145.05 %411.5 $52,789.65 $41,666.70 $11,122.95 %26.7PROPERTY TAXES

1.60 500.00 )(498.40 )(99.7 13,909.59 5,000.00 8,909.59 178.2INTEREST INCOME

3,916.12 416.67 3,499.45 839.9 34,633.87 4,166.70 30,467.17 731.2OTHER REVENUE

0.00 7,500.00 )(7,500.00 )(100.0 0.00 75,000.00 )(75,000.00 )(100.0SRF LOAN PROCEEDS

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 25,294.59 0.00 25,294.59 0.0GRANT REVENUE

%0.6%100.5Total Other Income (Expense) $12,583.34 $794.30$125,833.40$126,627.70$12,646.10$25,229.44

%752.7Income Before Taxes )$(76,508.33 )$(31,891.68 %)(71.5)$(44,616.65 $93,476.77 )$(14,320.50 $107,797.27

)$(76,508.33Net Income (Loss) )$(31,891.68 %)(71.5 )$(14,320.50 $107,797.27$93,476.77 %752.7)$(44,616.65

Agenda Packet - Page 8 of 112



As of 4/30/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District6/14/23
11:15:09 AM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $728,919.60

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 771,347.56

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 17,778.74

RABO6073 1,746.10

PRO-EQUITIES 901,978.93

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 108,512.83

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 95.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 296.66

PREPAID INSURANCE 88,746.94

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 8,816.10

PREPAID OTHER 38,181.53

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $2,860,189.93

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 48,723.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 394,729.85

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 118,736.69

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

Upgrade SCADA Radios 34,996.81

Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 19,388.25

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,237,979.06

Total Assets $11,098,168.99
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $5,876.04

PTO PAYABLE 155,874.86

Agenda Packet - Page 9 of 112



As of 4/30/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District6/14/23
11:15:09 AM

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 10,121.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,415.03

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

Flexible Spending Account )(292.33

Dependent Care 1,999.92

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $648,401.30

Total Liabilities $648,401.30
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A 93,476.77

 

Total Equity 10,449,767.69A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,098,168.99

Agenda Packet - Page 10 of 112



Water System Improvements
Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/(Over) Description/Status

Well #6 (Well #5 Replacement) 15,000.00$        15,000.00$              Retaining wall, gravel pad (Postponed due to COVID-19)
Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000.00$        25,000.00$              Modifications being made to existing valves then do South Tank in 2022.
Santa Ana Blvd Fire Flow Upgrade 45,000.00$        19.50$               44,980.50$              Construction in 2024
Re-plumb Encino & Thomas PRV Vaults - Design 12,000.00$        1,072.50$          10,927.50$              Construction in 2024
Well #2 & 3 Pump & Pannel Replacement 325,000.00$      2,370.00$          322,630.00$            Pump & Panel Replacement
Upgrade SCADA Radios 35,012.00$        34,996.81$        15.19$                     Replace SCADA radios & antennas and relocate antennas
Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 250,000$           19,388.25$        230,611.75$            Needed because of dropping Lake Casitas levels
Tico Mutual Annexation Project 90,000$             5,769.30$          84,230.70$              LAFCo Application, Design Engineering, SRF Coordination
SRF Water Main Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr, Easemts 523,000$           177,275.31$      345,724.69$            Awarded to Phoenix = $658,000 (13098 & 13099), Potholing & Easements
SRF Construction Potholing 120,000$           70,308.58$        49,691.42$              2023 Potholing Project (budget transfer #1)
SRF Solar Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr 81,000$             70,304.89$        10,695.11$              Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227

Total 1,521,012$        381,505$           1,139,507$              

Auto Equipment

Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

Replace 2008 F-250 Worktruck 55,000.00$        51,768.05$        3,231.95$                Replace 2008 Ford F-250 work truck

Shop Equipment

Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

Valve Turn Machine Upgrade to add GPS for GIS 4,500.00$          4,500.00$                This upgrade will provide the location of valves as they are exersized and import data to the GIS system.
Office Equipment

Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

Computer Upgrades 8,000.00$          1,810.14$          6,189.86$                Scanner for front office, agm computer, small desktop printer

Summary 1,588,512.00$   435,083.33$      1,153,428.67$         

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Status of Capital Improvement Projects - FYE 2023

4/30/2023

Agenda Packet - Page 11 of 112



Date Vendor Description Amount

4/4/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 67.71$              

4/7/23 MATILIJA WATER Office Water 24.24$              

4/10/23 MECHANICS BANK Analysis Charges 705.04$            

4/11/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 63.82$              

4/13/23 SCE Electric Bill 9,365.78$         

4/14/23 ACWA Health Insurance 11,586.48$      

4/14/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 7,636.22$         

4/14/23 CALPERS UAL- Classic 3,934.58$         

4/14/23 CALPERS Classic 2,551.16$         

4/14/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,085.38$         

4/14/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,169.41$         

4/14/23 AT&T Mobile Phones 415.77$            

4/14/23 CALPERS UAL- Pepra 162.75$            

4/14/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$              

4/14/23 IVR Robocalls 82.76$              

4/17/23 TIAA Ricoh Printer 175.64$            

4/17/23 VANCO Bank Check Elimination 85.90$              

4/19/23 CHASE Monthly Credit Card 3,437.00$         

4/21/23 POSTALIA Postage 200.00$            

4/24/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 75.00$              

4/25/23 WAGEWORKS Flexible Spending Account 10.00$              

4/28/23 IRS Federal Tax Deposit 7,841.63$         

4/28/23 CALPERS 457 3,375.00$         

4/28/23 CALPERS Classic 2,551.16$         

4/28/23 CALPERS Pepra 2,085.38$         

4/28/23 EDD State Tax Deposit 1,183.37$         

4/28/23 EXPERTPAY Child Support 97.00$              

Total Online A/P Payments 61,065.18$      

Check Number Vendor Reason Amount

None

Online A/P Payment Transactions - April 2023

Voided Checks

Agenda Packet - Page 12 of 112



Page: 15/2/23 Ventura River Water District
9:18:14 PM

Check Dates: 4/1/2023 to 4/30/2023

AP Check Register (Current by Bank)

Status*Date AmountVendor ID Payee NameCheck No.

BANK ID:  RBOGEN - OPERATING ACCOUNT 10005

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES17628 P04/15/23 $384.1910197

BADGER METER17629 P04/15/23 $960.0510094

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST17630 P04/15/23 $9,958.12750

CLA-VAL17631 P04/15/23 $8,446.19795

COASTAL STATES INSURANCE17632 P04/15/23 $81,903.00800

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SOLUTIONS17633 P04/15/23 $1,412.841000

DATA PROSE17634 P04/15/23 $1,412.8710111

DOCUMENT SYSTEMS17635 P04/15/23 $182.971269

FGL, INC.17636 P04/15/23 $102.001393

HERUM CRABTREE SUNTAG17637 P04/15/23 $508.3410134

KELLY CLEANING & SUPPLIES17638 P04/15/23 $250.001730

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17639 P04/15/23 $97.661950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17640 P04/15/23 $1,793.082025

NELSON COMIS KETTLE & KINNEY,17641 P04/15/23 $1,852.5010204

OJAI TRUE VALUE17642 P04/15/23 $95.4110127

OJAI VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT17643 P04/15/23 $241.802400

PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC17644 P04/15/23 $5,781.002625

ROBERT D. NIEHAUS, INC.17645 P04/15/23 $10,000.0010097

CARMEN MURILLO17646 P04/15/23 $800.0010072

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL17647 P04/15/23 $60.0010118

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT17648 P04/15/23 $73.003550

VCSDA17649 P04/15/23 $50.0010181

WATERSHED PROGRESSIVE17650 P04/15/23 $3,365.0010163

ZWORLD GIS, LLC17651 P04/15/23 $5,466.6410123

BADGER METER17652 P04/30/23 $2,272.7310094

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST17653 P04/30/23 $10,326.55750

CUSTOM PRINTING17654 P04/30/23 $3,156.631125

DIAL SECURITY17655 P04/30/23 $502.001268

E J HARRISON & SONS, INC17656 P04/30/23 $157.621300

FAIRWEATHER HEATING & AIR CON17657 P04/30/23 $13,714.001392

FGL, INC.17658 P04/30/23 $1,122.001393

FP MAILING SOLUTIONS17659 P04/30/23 $105.411396

MEINERS OAKS HARDWARE17660 P04/30/23 $15.871950

MITEC SOLUTIONS LLC17661 P04/30/23 $100.002025

MOVE N' LUBE17662 P04/30/23 $492.932060

OJAI TRUE VALUE17663 P04/30/23 $92.6110127

PEGGY WILES17664 P04/30/23 $33.2810083

QUILL CORPORATION17665 P04/30/23 $21.432750

R. MEIER CONSTRUCTION17666 P04/30/23 $10,075.0710178

SAMUEL HALL17667 P04/30/23 $65.00SHALL

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL17668 P04/30/23 $60.0010118

U S POSTAGE METER CENTER17669 P04/30/23 $389.7610051

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT17670 P04/30/23 $81.753550

ZWORLD GIS, LLC17671 P04/30/23 $11,666.6410123

BANK RBOGEN REGISTER TOTAL: $189,647.94

GRAND TOTAL : $189,647.94

* Check Status Types: "P" - Printed  ; "M" - Manual ; "V" - Void ( Void Date ); "A" - Application; "E" - EFT
** Denotes broken check sequence. Agenda Packet - Page 13 of 112



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  3/1/2023 Through 3/31/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

 Revenues

$95,157.25 $144,283.00 )$(49,125.75 %)(34.0 $1,606,878.97 $2,003,498.00 )$(396,619.03 %)(19.8WATER SALES

1,323.71 83.33 1,240.38 1488.5 3,668.53 749.97 2,918.56 389.2SERVICE INSTALLATION

1,135.00 1,400.00 )(265.00 )(18.9 16,665.00 12,600.00 4,065.00 32.3DELINQUENT FEES

6,115.00 2,666.67 3,448.33 129.3 88,284.00 24,000.03 64,283.97 267.8CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES

%)(15.9%)(30.1Total Revenues $148,433.00 )$(325,351.50$2,040,848.00$1,715,496.50)$(44,702.04$103,730.96

 Operating Expenses

9,958.12 12,000.00 2,041.88 17.0 86,071.25 108,000.00 21,928.75 20.3WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES

10,705.33 10,705.33 0.00 0.0 96,347.97 96,347.97 0.00 0.0UVRGA PUMP FEE

60,514.18 64,705.92 4,191.74 6.5 559,866.53 582,353.28 22,486.75 3.9SALARIES

7,132.00 6,470.58 )(661.42 )(10.2 60,064.17 58,235.22 )(1,828.95 )(3.1PTO & SICK

5,001.48 4,950.00 )(51.48 )(1.0 42,203.90 44,550.00 2,346.10 5.3SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE

0.00 83.33 83.33 100.0 1,056.95 749.97 )(306.98 )(40.9STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT)

9,279.97 9,918.58 638.61 6.4 81,061.25 89,267.22 8,205.97 9.2PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

11,586.48 12,000.00 413.52 3.4 104,529.47 108,000.00 3,470.53 3.2GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

1,041.51 2,333.33 1,291.82 55.4 8,565.07 20,999.97 12,434.90 59.2WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

5,438.33 5,981.92 543.59 9.1 48,944.97 53,837.28 4,892.31 9.1LIABILITY INSURANCE

1,140.00 1,083.33 )(56.67 )(5.2 8,380.00 9,749.97 1,369.97 14.1BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION

129.40 10,953.75 10,824.35 98.8 87,950.51 98,583.75 10,633.24 10.8CONTRACT LABOR

1,666.64 5,958.33 4,291.69 72.0 29,333.12 53,624.97 24,291.85 45.3PROFESSIONAL SERVICES(Audit, Engr,Draft)

1,414.34 1,800.00 385.66 21.4 14,401.97 16,200.00 1,798.03 11.1FUEL

577.00 833.33 256.33 30.8 3,067.27 7,499.97 4,432.70 59.1VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

5,149.32 5,650.00 500.68 8.9 37,072.93 50,850.00 13,777.07 27.1OFFICE MAINTENANCE

14,123.48 4,583.33 )(9,540.15 )(208.1 32,244.87 41,249.97 9,005.10 21.8FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

960.05 6,898.92 5,938.87 86.1 86,638.41 62,090.28 )(24,548.13 )(39.5METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE

29.28 416.67 387.39 93.0 263.52 3,750.03 3,486.51 93.0EQUIPMENT RENTAL

2,285.21 7,916.67 5,631.46 71.1 63,485.01 71,250.03 7,765.02 10.9WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

1,875.00 1,416.67 )(458.33 )(32.4 7,798.57 12,750.03 4,951.46 38.8DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL

0.00 29,166.67 29,166.67 100.0 0.00 262,500.03 262,500.03 100.0DEPRECIATION

%21.2%27.1Total Operating Expenses $205,826.66 $393,092.23$1,852,439.94$1,459,347.71$55,819.54$150,007.12

 General & Administrative Expenses

13,158.91 12,083.33 )(1,075.58 )(8.9 90,623.14 108,749.97 18,126.83 16.7UTILITIES

1,209.43 1,191.67 )(17.76 )(1.5 8,331.83 10,725.03 2,393.20 22.3TELEPHONE & INTERNET

131.67 134.67 3.00 2.2 1,185.03 1,212.03 27.00 2.2LAFCO FEES

665.88 1,200.00 534.12 44.5 7,111.83 10,800.00 3,688.17 34.1BANK FEES AND MISCELLANEOUS

1,850.08 2,083.33 233.25 11.2 16,174.81 18,749.97 2,575.16 13.7MEMBERSHIP,DUES,SUBSCRIPTIONS

234.14 1,200.00 965.86 80.5 3,312.31 10,800.00 7,487.69 69.3PUBLIC RELATIONS/EDUCATION/CONSERV

3,156.63 333.33 )(2,823.30 )(847.0 3,156.63 2,999.97 )(156.66 )(5.2LEGAL NOTICES & NEWSLETTERS

0.00 341.67 341.67 100.0 0.00 3,075.03 3,075.03 100.0ELECTIONS

0.00 416.67 416.67 100.0 225.82 3,750.03 3,524.21 94.0DIRECTORS TRAVEL/EDUCATION

249.00 416.67 167.67 40.2 2,990.50 3,750.03 759.53 20.3SECURITY

Agenda Packet - Page 14 of 112



Ventura River Water District
Income Statement

(Original Budget to Actual Comparison)
For the period of  3/1/2023 Through 3/31/2023

Year To DateCurrent Period

VarianceVariance % %Actual Actual BudgetBudget

797.82 1,083.33 285.51 26.4 7,724.11 9,749.97 2,025.86 20.8POSTAGE

1,756.82 1,416.67 )(340.15 )(24.0 12,749.80 12,750.03 0.23 0.0OFFICE SUPPLIES

4,239.25 4,583.33 344.08 7.5 4,664.23 41,249.97 36,585.74 88.7VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES

0.00 333.33 333.33 100.0 0.00 2,999.97 2,999.97 100.0BAD DEBT EXPENSE

14,399.13 3,333.33 )(11,065.80 )(332.0 15,277.44 29,999.97 14,722.53 49.1CONSERVATION

%36.1%)(38.8Total General & Administrative Expenses $30,151.33 $97,834.49$271,361.97$173,527.48)$(11,697.43$41,848.76

%23.1Total Expenses $191,855.88 $44,122.11 %18.7$235,977.99 $1,632,875.19 $2,123,801.91 $490,926.72

Income (Loss) from Operations )$(88,124.92 )$(87,544.99 )$(579.93 %)(0.7 %199.6$165,575.22)$(82,953.91$82,621.31

 Other Income (Expense)

$9.58 $4,166.67 )$(4,157.09 %)(99.8 $31,477.93 $37,500.03 )$(6,022.10 %)(16.1PROPERTY TAXES

745.02 500.00 245.02 49.0 8,326.56 4,500.00 3,826.56 85.0INTEREST INCOME

3,449.14 416.67 3,032.47 727.8 30,717.75 3,750.03 26,967.72 719.1OTHER REVENUE

0.00 7,500.00 )(7,500.00 )(100.0 0.00 67,500.00 )(67,500.00 )(100.0SRF LOAN PROCEEDS

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 25,294.59 0.00 25,294.59 0.0GRANT REVENUE

%)(15.4%)(66.6Total Other Income (Expense) $12,583.34 )$(17,433.23$113,250.06$95,816.83)$(8,379.60$4,203.74

%489.0Income Before Taxes )$(83,921.18 )$(8,959.53 %)(12.0)$(74,961.65 $178,438.14 $30,296.15 $148,141.99

)$(83,921.18Net Income (Loss) )$(8,959.53 %)(12.0 $30,296.15 $148,141.99$178,438.14 %489.0)$(74,961.65

Agenda Packet - Page 15 of 112



As of 3/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District5/2/23
9:16:28 PM

Assets

 Current Assets

FUNDS IN COUNTY TREASURY $707,607.88

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 765,766.13

PETTY CASH 580.03

SECURITY DEPOSIT CHECKING 17,778.74

RABO6073 194,745.01

PRO-EQUITIES 898,062.81

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 108,417.29

TREASURY INTEREST RECEIVABLE 215.35

CMWD PENALTY RECEIVABLE 76.56

GRANTS RECEIVABLE 30,226.00

PREPAID SECURITY MONITORING & MAINT 344.00

PREPAID WEB SERVICES 30.01

PREPAID INSURANCE 96,613.70

PREPAID COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 9,231.69

PREPAID OTHER 52,423.85

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 162,672.00

Total Current Assets A $3,044,791.05

 Property, Plant & Equipment

WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT $2,810,360.66

SCADA SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 59,597.10

DISTRICT 4 AND DISTRICT 7 118,245.00

WELLS 1,852,532.96

TANKS 1,412,845.83

PUMPS 277,620.38

METERS 79,791.94

TRUCKS 278,657.71

OFFICE AND SHOP EQUIPMENT 299,988.35

BUILDINGS 1,810,567.45

LAND,WATER & RIGHTS OF WAY 227,580.50

SCADA SYSTEM 37,541.85

BALDWIN EROSION PROTECTION 68,324.24

PIPELINES 2,905,339.00

COMPUTERS 1,810.14

RE-PLUMB ENCINO & THOMAS PRV VAULTS 33,783.75

WELL#3 & WELL#2 PUMP & PANEL REPLACEMENT 305,662.80

N. BALDWIN TANK REPAIR 11,204.91

SANTA ANA BLVD FIRE FLOW UPGRADE 21,700.50

TICO MUTUAL PROJECT 47,488.18

SRF WATER MAIN PROJECTS 391,211.35

SRF CONSTRUCTION POTHOLING 70,308.58

SRF SOLAR PROJECTS 118,264.19

REPLACE 2008 F-250 TRUCK 51,768.05

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION )(5,127,624.42

Upgrade SCADA Radios 34,996.81

Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 19,388.25

GAIN/LOSS ON ASSET DISPOSAL 13,797.00

Total Property, Plant & Equipment A 8,232,753.06

Total Assets $11,277,544.11
A

Liabilities and Equity

 Current Liabilities

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $101,612.06

PTO PAYABLE 155,536.86

Agenda Packet - Page 16 of 112



As of 3/31/2023

Balance Sheet

Ventura River Water District5/2/23
9:16:28 PM

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSITS PAYABLE 10,121.25

SECURITY DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,415.03

TICO MUTUAL TRUST 51,832.53

Flexible Spending Account )(776.62

Dependent Care 1,499.94

NET PENSION LIABILITY 203,443.00

DEFERRED INFLOWS 213,131.00

Total Current Liabilities A $742,815.05

Total Liabilities $742,815.05
A

 Equity

INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $7,786,425.00

UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 2,569,865.92

Current Year Profit/Loss A 178,438.14

 

Total Equity 10,534,729.06A

Total Liabilities and Equity $11,277,544.11

Agenda Packet - Page 17 of 112



Water System Improvements
Account Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/(Over) Description/Status

13014 Well #6 (Well #5 Replacement) 15,000.00$    15,000.00$     Retaining wall, gravel pad (Postponed due to COVID-19)
13040 Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000.00$    25,000.00$     Modifications being made to existing valves then do South Tank in 2022.
13070 Santa Ana Blvd Fire Flow Upgrade 45,000.00$    19.50$    44,980.50$     Construction in 2024
13057 Re-plumb Encino & Thomas PRV Vaults - Design 12,000.00$    1,072.50$    10,927.50$     Construction in 2024
13061 Well #2 & 3 Pump & Pannel Replacement 325,000.00$     2,370.00$    322,630.00$     Pump & Panel Replacement
13104 Upgrade SCADA Radios 35,012.00$    34,996.81$    15.19$    Replace SCADA radios & antennas and relocate antennas
13105 Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 250,000$    19,388.25$    230,611.75$     Needed because of dropping Lake Casitas levels
13094 Tico Mutual Annexation Project 90,000$    4,534.30$    85,465.70$     LAFCo Application, Design Engineering, SRF Coordination
13098 SRF Water Main Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr, Easemts 523,000$    173,756.81$     349,243.19$     Awarded to Phoenix = $658,000 (13098 & 13099), Potholing & Easements
13099 SRF Construction Potholing 120,000$    70,308.58$    49,691.42$     2023 Potholing Project (budget transfer #1)
13100 SRF Solar Projects , Planning for Environmental, Engr 81,000$    69,832.39$    11,167.61$     Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227

Total 1,521,012$    376,279$    1,144,733$     

Auto Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

13101 Replace 2008 F-250 Worktruck 55,000.00$    51,768.05$    3,231.95$     Replace 2008 Ford F-250 work truck

Shop Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

13092 Valve Turn Machine Upgrade to add GPS for GIS 4,500.00$    4,500.00$     This upgrade will provide the location of valves as they are exersized and import data to the GIS system.
Office Equipment

Account Fixed Asset 22/23 Budget YTD Remaining/Over Description/Status

13054 Computer Upgrades 8,000.00$    1,810.14$    6,189.86$     Scanner for front office, agm computer, small desktop printer

Summary 1,588,512.00$   429,857.33$     1,158,654.67$     

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Status of Capital Improvement Projects - FYE 2023

3/31/2023

Agenda Packet - Page 18 of 112



 

DATE: June 21, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: CUSTOMER REQUEST TO WAIVE SEPARATE SERVICE LATERAL 
REQUIREMENT FOR A DETACHED ADDITIONAL DWELLING UNIT 

 
SUMMARY 

The owner of 64 Calle Vista Del Monte is requesting a waiver of the requirement to install 
a separate service lateral and meter to serve a new detached Additional Dwelling Unit 
(ADU). The existing 1-inch service lateral already serves two homes and does not have 
the capacity to serve a third dwelling.  VRWD’s Rules and Regulations require a separate 
water service to the main line in this instance.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The General Manager recommends that the Board require a separate water service pipe 
and water meter for the proposed ADU at 64 Calle Vista Del Monte and that the service 
be installed by a licensed and insured contractor selected by the owner and approved by 
the District.  
 
BACKGROUND 

The neighborhood was constructed in the late 1940’s and early 1950’s.  In accordance 
with the building standards at that time, the builder installed one service lateral to serve 
two homes – i.e., the home located on the subject property and the home located on the 
adjacent property at 48 Calle Vista Del Monte.  Currently, the two homes are separately 
metered but continue to be served by the shared service line from the water main to the 
meters.     

Letters from the owner requesting a waiver of the separate meter/service lateral 
requirement were received on March 29, 2023 and May 10, 2023.  The District provided 
a response letter on April 4, 2023.  Copies of the letters are attached.  

In response to the owner’s request, the General Manager performed a hydraulic analysis 
of the shared service lateral and found that it cannot support a third dwelling unit. The 
analysis shows that the 62 psi static pressure would drop to 17 psi after the meter during 
peak demand from three dwelling units. The minimum pressure for Health and Safety is 
20 psi with a recommended pressure of 40 psi.  The District’s Rules and Regulations 
require the installation of a separate water service under these circumstances. 

The Rules and Regulations also require the property owner to cover the cost of the service 
line installation for a new development of either a primary dwelling or an ADU so that the 
cost is not passed down to the other ratepayers. In this case, the property owner is 
requesting that the District cover the installation cost.  

Agenda Packet - Page 19 of 112



Appeal for Separate Service Line Requirement 
Page 2 of 2 

All funds received by the District are considered public funds. The California Constitution 
prohibits “gifts” or other expenditures of public funds for the exclusive benefit of a 
particular individual or organization, rather than for a public purpose. Special districts, 
such as the District, must also demonstrate that approved expenditures of public funds 
serve a valid public purpose.  

The District prides itself on making prudent use of public money, supplies, facilities, 
equipment and staff in accordance with adopted agency policies.  Approval of the property 
owners’ request that the District cover the cost of installation of the new water service to 
the proposed ADU would be contrary to the public funds doctrine under the California 
Constitution and District policy, and therefore cannot be granted.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The estimated construction cost for the service line and water meter is about $20,500. 
The District does not impose a Capacity Charge for an Additional Dwelling Unit.   

Agenda Packet - Page 20 of 112



Christie Pryce 
64 Calle Vista del Monte 

Oak View, CA 93022 

Bert Rapp, General Manager 
Ventura River Water District 
409 Old Baldwin Rd 
Ojai, CA 93023 

Dear Mr. Rapp, 

RE: NEW WATER METER EXEMPTION REQUEST 

I am the owner of the property at 64 Calle Vista del Monte, Oak View. The plan being submitted to the County of 

Ventura is for a detached one-bedroom, one-bathroom, 550 square foot Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU). As 

requested, your office recently provided a will-serve letter and Fire Prevention Form 625 Fire-Flow Verification. 

The will-serve letter outlines that “a separate meter and service line will be required for the ADU”. The quote 

provided by your office for the new meter and service line installation is $20,510.21. 

Please accept this letter as my formal, written request for Ventura River Water District (VRWD) to provide an 

exemption to the requirement for a new water meter and service line.   

I am requesting our ADU be exempt for the following reasons: 

1. The intention of California’s ADU legislation is to create more housing during the current housing crisis.

California’s ADU Law (Gov. Code § 65852.2) mandates that:

(f)(5) …a local agency, special district, or water corporation may require a new or separate utility 

connection directly between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. Consistent with Section 

66013, the connection may be subject to a connection fee or capacity charge that shall be 

proportionate to the burden of the proposed accessory dwelling unit, based upon either its 

square feet or the number of its drainage fixture unit (DFU) values…upon the water or sewer 

system. This fee or charge shall not exceed the reasonable cost of providing this service.  

(g) This section…does not limit the authority of local agencies to adopt less restrictive
requirements for the creation of an accessory dwelling unit.

The Government Code provides that the District may require a new meter. However, VRWD regulations 
take a very restrictive stance by requiring all “new Accessory Dwelling Units shall have a separate water 
service to the main unless the water pressure serving the property is 70 psi or higher…” 

Requiring ALL new detached ADUs (with less than 70 psi) to have a new meter assigns an arbitrary 
criterion and does not give any flexibility to consider the relevant aspects of a project, other than psi. 

Further, the water is “serving the property” at the “servicing facility”, which is defined in the VRWD 
Regulations as the “…lateral facilities between VRWD water main and the outlet of the meter.” In our 
case, the pressure was tested at the hose bib, which is situated after the water regulator. The water 
pressure should have been tested at the servicing facility. Since the pressure was not tested at the 

Agenda Packet - Page 21 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A

General Manager
Text Box
Letter Received March 29, 2023



servicing facility, we tested the pressure at the hose bib of our next door neighbors, and they were both 
at 65 psi. It is reasonable to conclude that our pressure is also 65 psi. Additionally, according to your 
office, we lose 0.42 psi for every foot in elevation above the level of the meter. The hose bib is 3 feet in 
elevation above the meter, which means our pressure is closer to 66.26 psi (65 + 1.26 = 66.26 psi). This is 
less than 4 psi short of meeting VRWD’s 70 psi threshold.  

2. VRWD requirement for a new meter for a detached ADUs is more restrictive than the surrounding water

districts:

o Casitas Municipal Water District Regulations (8.1.5) states:

ADUs constructed on single-family residential parcels, either within an existing building

envelope or in a new permitted structure, will not be independently metered by the District.

o Meiners Oaks Water District requires a new meter based on whether the property’s water

allocation is adequate in Section K (New Stand-Alone Accessory Dwelling Units):

Suppose the existing water allocation can be redistributed between the primary 

dwelling and ADU, with some leftover for outside irrigation. Then the existing allocation 

is adequate… 

o Carpinteria Water District (17.e) outlines that ADUs will not be required to be independently

metered.

o Golden State Water Company (2.a.4.d), requires the “existing dwelling structure and the

proposed ADU can be provided with one (1), 1-inch service line/connection or less”.

3. A converted garage, addition or Junior Accessory Dwelling Unit (JADU) within the footprint of the
existing dwelling would not be required to have a new water meter installed. If we constructed a
separate living space, the same size with the same DFUs as the detached ADU we would not be required
to install a new meter. This detached ADU is no more substantive than an attached ADU.

The VRWD should review each project in its entirety and make an objective decision based on the
unique circumstances of that specific project. According to the ADU Handbook:

The preparation, adoption, amendment, and implementation of local ADU ordinances…must not 

unduly constrain the creation of ADUs. Local governments adopting ADU ordinances should 

carefully weigh the adoption of zoning, development standards, and other provisions for 

impacts on the development of ADUs. 

4. The existing primary dwelling is a 3-bedroom, one-bathroom, 989 square foot building with six (6) water

fixtures, no lawn and controlled drip irrigation. The planned ADU will have five (5) water fixtures. With

the additional fixtures installed in the proposed ADU, our property will have a total of 11 water fixtures

(5 + 6 = 11). Our immediate neighbors currently each have nine (9) fixtures, as well as, lawn sprinklers,

which are sufficiently served by their one meter.

In preparation for our new detached ADU over the past two years we have made major changes in our

landscaping to re-allocate our water use to the new ADU. To date, we have removed several non-

drought tolerant trees, bushes and plants, replaced the grass with artificial turf, and selected drought-

tolerant landscape plants watered through targeted drip irrigation on a timer. Comparing our usage in

September 2021 to September 2022, our water use has been reduced by 3 units.

Agenda Packet - Page 22 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A



VRWD budgets 12-13 units of water use, however, since September 2022 we are consistently using 6-7 

units (50% of water allocated). Construction of a 550 sq. ft. detached ADU will use water, but as 

acknowledged by the VRWD regulations (Appendix II Capacity Charge Schedule), “additional dwellings 

typically replace landscaping and result in reduced overall water use…”. 

5. While not as expensive as a new primary residence, the reality is that constructing a new detached ADU

is a costly endeavor. The $20,510.21 additional expense for a new water meter is approximately 20% of

our project budget and is so cost prohibitive that we will not be able to proceed in constructing the ADU.

This requirement is a significant impediment that appears to contradict the spirit and intent of the ADU

laws, including reducing barriers, streamlining the process, and expanding the potential capacity for

ADUs. As stated in Gov. Code § 65852.150:

(8)(b) It is the intent of the Legislature that…requirements, are not so arbitrary, excessive, or 

burdensome so as to unreasonably restrict the ability of homeowners to create accessory 

dwelling units in zones in which they are authorized by local ordinance. 

6. The California Plumbing Code provides that water pressure at the point of use must be no less than 15

psi and no more than 80 psi. And normal indoor water pressure ranges from 45-65 psi.

Adding an ADU will not affect the pressure serving the property nor neighboring properties, and 60-65

psi will be more than adequate pressure for the new structure. I concede that we may need to increase

our main line from ¾“ to 1” to achieve the volume needed for additional fixtures. However, a new meter

will not increase our pressure, allocation or volume, so why is a new meter required?

For the above reasons, I urge the VRWD to reconsider requiring a new meter for our project, and all new 

detached ADUs served by VRWD because as noted in the ADU Handbook, “ADUs…provides additional rental 

housing and is an essential component in addressing California’s housing needs”. 

If you would like to discuss this further, or if a review by the Board of Directors at the Wednesday, April 19, 2023 
meeting is needed, please let me know. I can be contacted at 805-640-5532 or pryce_is_right@hotmail.com.  

Sincerely, 

Christie Pryce 

Cc: Matt LaVere, County Supervisor 
Clint Garman, District Representative 
Maruja Clensay, District Representative 

Encl:  VRWD Will-serve Letter, dated 3/17/2023 
Fire Prevention Form 625 Fire-Flow Verification, dated 3/17/2023 
VRWD Billing Statement for 64 Calle Vista del Monte, Oak View, bill date 9/30/2022 
Site Plan for 64 Calle Vista del Monte, Oak View 

Agenda Packet - Page 23 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A

mailto:pryce_is_right@hotmail.com


409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

April 4, 2023 

Christie Pryce 
64 Calle Vistal del Monte 
Oak View, CA 93022  Email: pryce_is_right@hotmail.com 

Subject: Request to Waive Separate Meter Requirement 

Dear Ms. Pryce, 

Thank you for your very thorough and well-thought-out letter received on March 22, 2023. On 
behalf of the District, we thank you for being conscientious with your water use, as you are among 
the smallest water users in the District, which helps to preserve sensitive aquatic habitat on the 
Ventura River, especially during serious droughts. We have evaluated your request to waive the 
requirement for a separate meter. During our evaluation process, our field crew verified there is 
one existing service line from the water main to the meter that serves two properties.  

When your neighborhood was constructed in the early 1950’s, it was built to County of Ventura 
standards at the time, and the developer was allowed to install a single 1” pipe to serve two 
homes: 64 Calle Vista del Monte (64 CVDM, your home) and 48 Calle Vista del Monte (48 CVDM, 
your neighbor’s home).  Each home is metered separately, but they are connected through a 
single 1” service line from the water main to the meters. Several areas within the District are 
constructed in this manner and as these pipes fail throughout the District, we require they be 
replaced with individual, 1” service lines to each home.  

Our current Rules and Regulations require each dwelling unit to have its own meter and we no 
longer allow two properties to be served by one pipe. See Section 4.1.1 from the Rules and 
Regulations.  

We cannot allow a third dwelling to be connected to an already over-stressed small pipe to the 
harm of your neighbor at 48 Calle Vista del Monte. We require that each home have a separate 
water meter to encourage conservation in the spirit of Water Code Section 521, see below.  

We would also like to address some of the bullet points in your letter. The numbering below 
matches the numbering of your letter.  

1. The first is regarding Gov. Code § 65852.2(f)(5), which states, “…a local agency, special
district, or water corporation may require a new or separate utility connection directly
between the accessory dwelling unit and the utility. Our Rules and Regulations do require
the addition of a separate meter, which is consistent with the California Plumbing Code
Section 601.2.2 “Submeters.” The good news is there is no capacity charge associated
with the added connection, only the construction cost for which we have provided an
estimate. If you do not agree with our estimate, you are welcome to perform the work with
your own contractor and we will inspect the work. See section 5.2 of our Rules and
Regulations below.

We measured the pressure at the hose bib as measuring at the meter will require removal
of the meter, and installation of one of our certified and calibrated pressure gauges. The

Agenda Packet - Page 24 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A

mailto:pryce_is_right@hotmail.com


409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

pressure at the hose bib was measured at 60 psi. As pressure is related to elevation, the 
resulting pressure at the meter would be 61.26 psi (60+1.26 = 61.26).  

3. VRWD has no jurisdiction on adopting ADU ordinances related to zoning, development
standards, or other provisions for impacts on the development of ADU’s. Our focus is on
delivering safe, reliable drinking water, while making effective use of water resources, and
maintaining adequate pressure in our system for water delivery and for fire flow capacity.

4. The California Plumbing Code (and Ventura County Plumbing Codes) have equivalent
fixture counts based on the type of fixture. Based on the floor plan provided to us via email,
we have determined there is a total of 13.5 equivalent fixtures for the proposed ADU. This
was calculated based on the current California Plumbing Code, Table 610.3.

We do not know what the equivalent fixture count for the primary residence is, nor do we
know the equivalent fixture count for 48 Calle Vista del Monte. We do know that adding
the detached ADU without a separate line would add a third branch to the existing service
line, which would negatively impact 48 Calle Vista del Monte.

5. You may be able to lower the cost by utilizing our provision to self-manage the work. See
section 4.1.1. below.

6. While adding an ADU will not impact the static water pressure (no water being used by
any of the 3 structures), it will dramatically impact the dynamic pressure when water is
being used at the three homes simultaneously (64 CVDM, 48 CVDM, and the proposed
ADU) because all three would be served from the same 1” service line from the water
main. A new water service line is needed so that the dynamic water pressure to 48 Calle
Vista del Monte the adjacent property will not be impacted.

Based on all the information we have; we have concluded that if an ADU is added to your 
property a separate water service should be installed.  

Agenda Packet - Page 25 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A



409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

Water Code Section 512: 

Rules and Regulations for water service: 

Agenda Packet - Page 26 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A



409 Old Baldwin Rd Ojai CA 93023  |  805-646-3403  |  VenturaRiverWD.com 

Very Truly Yours, 

Bert J. Rapp, P.E. 
General Manager  

Phone: (805) 646-3403 
e-mail: Bert@VenturaRiverWD.com

Cc: Matt LaVere, County Supervisor 
Clint Garman, District Representative 
Maruja Clensay, District Representative 
Ed Lee, President Ventura River Water District 

Agenda Packet - Page 27 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A



Christie Pryce 
64 Calle Vista del Monte 

Oak View, CA 93022 

5/10/2023 

Bert Rapp, General Manager 
Ventura River Water District 
409 Old Baldwin Rd 
Ojai, CA 93023 

Dear Mr. Rapp, 

RE: NEW WATER METER EXEMPTION APPPEAL 

Thank you for your reply dated April 4, 2023. We are happy to do our part to conserve water! I have reviewed 

your response to our request and I would like you to reconsider your requirement for a new water meter and 

service line. I hope we can come up with solutions in a joint effort to resolve this issue. My neighbor at 48 Calle 

Vista del Monte is also in agreement with my request for an exemption. 

It seems there are two issues that we should separate and deal with individually: 

1. The separation of the neighboring service lines.

VRWD is requiring that the meter be relocated to separate it from our neighbor’s meter, as you stated, 

due to “…already over-stressed small pipe…”. Since VRWD mandates “they be replaced with individual, 

1” service lines to each home” to prevent “harm of your neighbor”, the relocation is required by VRWD, 

therefore VRWD should cover the expense.  

If VRWD “…no longer allows two properties to be served by one pipe…”, requiring each property to be 

serviced through a separate pipe, shouldn’t VRWD upgrade the infrastructure (separate the lines) to 

comply with VRWD’s own regulations?  

Customers should not be expected to incur the cost of upgrading VRWD’s outdated 1950’s 

infrastructure to today’s standards. Further, customers should not have to experience the 

inconvenience when, as you said, “…these pipes fail throughout the District…” to have the infrastructure 

updated.  

It sounds like connected meters have failed in the District and VRWD knows that connected 

pipes/meters are likely to fail in the future.  

What is VRWD’s strategic plan to separate the meters before the pipes fail? Is this in the strategic plan 

for 2023? 

2. Installation of a new water meter.

Since VRWD’s regulations require an ADU to have a new meter installed unless the pressure is 70 psi, 

and there is disagreement on the method and means on how the pressure reading was originally 

measured, I would like to request that VRWD measure the pressure at the meter where VRWD is 

“serving the property” at the “servicing facility”, which is defined in the VRWD Regulations as the 

“…lateral facilities between VRWD water main and the outlet of the meter.” 

Agenda Packet - Page 28 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A



If it is 70 psi as measured on VRWD’s certified and calibrated pressure gauge, the new meter 

requirement becomes moot and no exemption is required.  

However, if the pressure reading is under 70 psi, I urge the VRWD to reconsider requiring a new meter 

and service line for our ADU project.  

In the likely event we cancel our ADU project, will VRWD proceed with separating the neighboring water 

meters to bring our servicing facilities into compliance with VRWD regulations? When? 

While they are occurring in tandem, these are separate, yet intertwined issues. VRWD deems the pipe shared 

with the neighboring property needs to be separated and a new service line from the main installed, which is 

separate from the requirement of a new meter for an ADU. If we are not required to install a new meter, the 

neighboring service lines are likely not required to be separated at this time. 

My neighbor (48 Calle Vista del Monte) and I would like to meet with you to discuss, or we can review this at the 
Board of Directors meeting on Wednesday, May 24, 2023. Please let me know the next steps to resolve these 
issues. If you have any questions I can be contacted at 805-640-5532 or pryce_is_right@hotmail.com.  

Sincerely, 

Christie Pryce 

Cc: Matt LaVere, County Supervisor 
Clint Garman, District Representative 
Maruja Clensay, District Representative 
Ed Lee, President Ventura River Water District 
Shannan West, Housing Accountability Unit Chief, Department of Housing and Community Development 
Richard Neil, Homeowner, 48 Calle Vista del Monte 

Encl:  VRWD Will-serve Letter, dated 3/17/2023 
Service Line Installation Estimate, dated 3/16/2023 
New Water Meter Exemption Request Letter (emailed 3/22/2023) 
Request to Waive Separate Meter response letter from Bert Rapp (4/4/2023) 

Agenda Packet - Page 29 of 112

ATTACHMENT 4A

mailto:pryce_is_right@hotmail.com


THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 30 of 112



 

 
DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Emily Arnbrister, Office Manager & Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF FINAL 2023/24 BUDGET, SALARY RANGE SCHEDULE 
AND 10-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

 
SUMMARY 

This is the final review of the draft FY 2023/24 budget. Water Sales Revenues are 
currently running about 22% under budget and are expected to finish the year at that 
level. Water usage is projected to finish the year at a record low of 675 AF.  The General 
Manager recommends reducing the anticipated water usage from 800 AF to 750 AF 
because of the anticipated El Nino event next winter.  This will reduce the anticipated 
revenue from $2,655,000 to $2,500,000. Comments from board members received during 
the first and second budget reviews have been incorporated into the current budget.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The Office Manager and General Manager recommend that the Board: 

1. Review and adopt the FY 2023/24 budget. 
2. Approve the 10- Year Capital Improvement Program dated June 21, 2023. 
3. Approve the Salary Range Schedule dated June 21, 2023. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The latest revenues and expenses have been included as of April 30th and are projected 
through June 30, 2023. The CIP program was reviewed in depth in February of 2023. No 
major changes have been made to the Capital Improvement Program. Overall expenses 
are running 11% under budget.  
 
There are three optional projects the Board may elect to postpone in September 2023 to 
increase our ending cash balance:  

 Well #6 retaining wall for $30,000,  
 the Hydrant & Valve Replacement for $205,000, and  
 the Alto Tank Mixing Valve $25,000.  

 
In lieu of postponing Capital Improvement Projects, staff modeled the use of Water Sales 
Fluctuation Reserves to meet the budget demands on FY 23/24. By utilizing $100,000 
from the reserve funds, the funds available for CIP for June 30, 2024, are projected to be 
approximately $93,343.  
 
Additionally, the board has the option to increase water rates in response to Casitas 
Municipal Water District increasing their resale water rate costs. As published in the 
District’s Prop 218 Notice in March of 2023, the District would be able to impose pass-
through charges for the rate increase to the District customers, which would mitigate a 
shortfall in the budget.  

Agenda Packet - Page 31 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 2 of 7 

 
Notable Changes to Specific Accounts: 
 
50000- Water Purchases & Casitas Base Fees: Casitas Municipal Water District 
approved a Protest Hearing Notice for 5 years of rate increases that start on September 
1, 2023. The annual cost of Casitas water bills will increase an average of 22% annually 
for VRWD for five years. If the rates are approved at the Public Hearing in August, the 
Casitas costs after five years will have increased 270% from $147,000 per year to 
$395,000 per year.  
$144,000 $185,000 
 
60008- Group Health Insurance: Health Insurance rates are projected to have an increase 
of 10% beginning in January 2024. The General Manager’s insurance will terminate 
December 31st. 
$144,000 $135,000 
 
60011- Board Member Compensation: Increased due to increased adjudication meetings 
and potential increase in compensation. 
$13,000 $24,000 
 
60022- Water System Maintenance: When the District applies for grading permits for the 
solar and erosion protection at 409 Old Baldwin the County will require about $40,000 
from the District to create a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for all District facilities.  After 
the CUP is issued there will be an annual fee due of about $5,000.  This year includes 
$25,000 for the tank inspection that occurs every 5 years.  
$95,000 $160,000 
 
60024- District Legal Counsel: Legal expenses have increased to account for increased 
hourly rates and level of legal participation.  
$17,000 $35,000 
 
70018- Conservation: VRIF Grant requires VRWD to pay expenses for future 
reimbursement. VRIF was awarded for $172k to spend by August 2025, VRWD is 
required to match $25,000.  
$40,000 $100,000 
 
47000- Grant Revenue: VRIF Grant requires VRWD to pay expenses for future 
reimbursement. VRWD is also required to match $25,800 with staff time or cash 
contribution.  Work must be completed by August of 2025.    
$0 $100,000 
 
13106- Re-Roof Office: VRWD received a cost proposal for budget accuracy, re-roofing 
is necessary prior to solar installation.  This would be an opportunity to install solar tube 
skylights in the office, they cost about $1,200 each.  Four could be installed in the main 
office at a cost of about $5,000 prior to the new roof installation.  

Agenda Packet - Page 32 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 3 of 7 

$0 $50,000 
 
13061- Well #2 & #3 Pump & Panel Replacement: Work was delayed in FYE 23, moved 
unspent funds to FYE 24. 
$325,000 $300,435 
 
 
13110- SCADA System Improvements: Upgrade of SCADA system to GeoSCADA is 
required in preparation for integration of pump station upgrades and solar panels as well 
as integrating a ClaVal at Parker for emergency backfill between Parker and Alto. 
$0 $25,000 
 
10 Year Capital Improvement Program 
As mentioned in notable changes there is a new CIP project for next fiscal year, re-roofing 
of the District Office. This project is needed prior to installation of the solar panels. There 
is also a hydrant and valve project that is anticipated to be completed in Summer of 2023.  
 
The SCADA upgrade project was originally scheduled for FY 25/26 and has been moved 
up one year to FY 24/25 and estimated to cost $162,000.  The SCADA upgrade should 
be performed before the Baldwin and Parker pumpstations are rehabilitated with variable 
frequency drives in late summer 2024.   
  
All other CIP Projects for FY 23/24 are continued work from the previous fiscal year of 
projects that were either not completed or not started.  
 
Staff reviewed the 10-year Capital Improvement Program in depth in February of 2023 
and again this June. There were no major changes to the 10-year program other than 
moving up the completion of the SCADA upgrade project.   
 
Salary Range Schedule 
The salary range schedule has been updated to include cost-of-living adjustments for 
positions at 50% of the March 2023 CPI for the lowest paid positions at 1.85%. The 
highest paid positions received 50% of the average dollar amount of the cost-of-living 
adjustment of the lowest paid positions, which is equal to $1,380/year.  
 
A full salary survey was conducted for the Field Supervisor position to assess if the 
position is competitive against other agencies and was found to be slightly under market 
value. The current maximum pay is $120,000.  Staff compared the position to 17 other 
Agencies and concluded that the maximum pay should be increased to $130,000 to 
remain competitive.  
  

Agenda Packet - Page 33 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 4 of 7 

 

Agenda Packet - Page 34 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 5 of 7 

 

  

HOURLY  RANGE MONTHLY  RANGE ANNUAL  RANGE

POSITION MIN MAX MIN MAX MIN MAX

Water Operator I $25.96 $37.75 $4,500 $6,544 $54,000 $78,524

Water Operator II $35.68 $51.41 $6,184 $8,912 $74,211 $106,943

Water Operator III $37.44 $53.55 $6,489 $9,282 $77,872 $111,380

Field Supervisor $48.08 $62.50 $8,333 $10,833 $100,000 $130,000

Office Assistant $21.63 $33.30 $3,750 $5,772 $45,000 $69,258

Account Administrator $20.96 $37.12 $3,633 $6,434 $43,600 $77,202

Office Manager $41.65 $58.36 $7,219 $10,115 $86,628 $121,380

Assistant General Manager $48.08 $67.97 $8,333 $11,782 $100,000 $141,380

General Manager $69.71 $87.20 $12,083 $15,115 $145,000 $181,380

Cost of Living adjustments for FY 2023/2024:
Inflation Rate March 2023: 3.7 %

1.85 %

$1,380Cost of Living adjustment for highest 50% of salaries ($ amt of ave of lowest):

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

EMPLOYEE SALARY RATE RANGES

June 21, 2023

Cost of Living 50% adjustment for lowest 50% of salaries:

Agenda Packet - Page 35 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 6 of 7 

Investment Update 
The District currently has an investment portfolio comprised of 4 CD’s maturing at different 
times. All CD’s are fully insured, with a total par value of 948,000, currently yielding  0.49% 
interest for an average of 1.29 years.   
 
Including maturities, the portfolio’s cash flow will pay out a total of $501,816 in the next 
12 months: 

 
 
The District’s next maturity is schedules for 11/28/23 for $249,000: 

 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The proposed budget showcases a 10-year financial model that is net positive after taking 
into account annual adjustments for inflation, retirement, healthcare, energy costs, and 
the 10-Year Capital Improvement Program.  
 
Over the next five years we are adding $50,000 per year to the Emergency Reserves to 
bring it up to $1,000,000. The Casitas rate increase is adding an average of $50,000 per 
year for the next 5 years. We will also be using $100,000 from the Water Sales Fluctuation 
Reserve and plan to build up this reserve account gradually over a 4-year period in annual 
increments of $25,000. The reserves will be allocated and fully reviewed at the end of the 
financial audit. 

Agenda Packet - Page 36 of 112



Board Memo 
Page 7 of 7 

 
 

 
Concur:___________________ 
Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 
 
Attachments: 
 5A - Draft FY 23/24 Budget 
 5B - 10-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
 

Agenda Packet - Page 37 of 112



July 1, 2023 July 1, 2024

2,901,384.00$            2,356,087$  

2022-2023 4/30/2023 2023 2023-2024

40000 WATER SALES (Water Charges, Fire standby) 2,660,000$ 1,702,628$  2,000,000$  2,500,000$

40001 SERVICE INSTALLATIONS 1,000$  3,669$  3,845$  1,500$  

40002 DELINQUENT FEES 16,800$  18,735$  22,488$  16,800$

40005 PURCHASED WATER SURCHARGE -$  -$  -$  -$

40009 CONSERVATION PENALTY FEES 32,000$  90,784$  105,000$  30,000$

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 2,709,800.00$            1,815,815.76$            2,131,333.00$             2,548,300.00$  

2022-2023 4/30/2023 2023 2023-2024

43000 CAPACITY CHARGE -$  -$  -$  -$

41000 PROPERTY TAXES 50,000$  52,790$  63,348$  60,000$

42000 INTEREST INCOME 6,000$  13,910$  16,692$  8,000$  

45000 OTHER REVENUE 5,000$  34,634$  4,000$  15,000$

46000 SRF LOAN PROCEEDS 90,000$  -$  -$  -$

47000 GRANT REVENUE -$  25,295$  -$  100,000$

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 151,000$ 126,628$  84,040$  183,000$

TOTAL REVENUE 2,860,800$ 1,942,443$  2,215,373$  2,731,300$

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Draft FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

June 21, 2023

FYE 2024 (2023/2024)

 GENERAL MGR RECOMMENDED 
Comments

Conservation Penalty for Abusive Water Waste Penalty $5/Unit Stage 1 Drought 
(No Reduction in Water Budgets)

OTHER REVENUE BUDGET  TOTAL AS OF 

 TOTAL AS OF  ESTIMATED THRU JUNE OPERATING REVENUES  GENERAL MGR RECOMMENDED BUDGET

Account 
Number

REVENUES

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE:

 ESTIMATED THRU JUNE 

CPI = 3.7%, 12 Months ended March 2023

TVI/Pro Equities Revenue varies, UVRGA $13.5K Audit, Will Serve Letter Fee, 
Fire Flow Cert Fees

Aprox 40 customers month

Not expecting Casitas water purchases this year

Account 
Number

Anticipate no new non ADU connections

Based on year to year actual

LAIF Interest expected to be about 2.0%

VRIF Grant Funding

Comments

Use 750 AF for 23/24 Actual for 2022/23 = about 675 AF

Anticipate one new connection for ADU, cost varies with location. 

Anticipate funding in FY 24-25

Page 1 of 4

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 38 of 112



VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Draft FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

June 21, 2023

FYE 2024 (2023/2024)

2022-2023 4/30/2023 2023 2023-2024

50000 WATER PURCHASES & CASITAS BASE FEES 144,000$  $ 96,398 128,532$  185,000$

50001 UVRGA PUMP FEE 128,464$  $ 107,053 128,460$  126,000$

60000 SALARIES 776,471$  $ 616,494 739,788$  832,000$

60001 PTO ACCRUAL 77,647$   $ 67,232 80,676$  74,000 

60002 SOCIAL SECURITY & MEDICARE 59,400$  47,049$  56,460$  64,000$

60004 STATE PAYROLL TAXES (SUI, ETT) 1,060$  1,057$  1,272$  1,200$  

60005 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 119,023$  $ 90,167 108,204$  127,000$

60008 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE 144,000$  $ 116,116 139,344$  135,000$

60009 WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE 28,000$   $ 9,607 11,532$  21,000$

60010 LIABILITY INSURANCE 71,783$   $ 55,770 66,924$  83,000$

60011 BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION 13,000$   $ 9,380 11,256$  24,000$

60012 EMERGENCY REPAIR 131,445$  $ 98,155 117,780$  120,000$

60014 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (Audit, Engr, Draft, Etc) 71,500$   $ 54,000 64,800$  75,200$

60016 FUEL 21,600$   $ 14,402 17,280$  24,000$

60017 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 10,000$   $ 3,590 4,308$  10,000$

60018 OFFICE MAINTENANCE 67,800$   $ 60,386 72,468$  70,000$

60019 FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 55,000$   $ 41,598 49,920$  60,000$

60020 METER REPLACEMENT & MAINTENANCE 97,787$   $ 88,911 106,692$  78,000$

60021 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 5,000$   $ 299 360$  -$

60022 WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE 95,000$   $ 69,074 82,884$  160,000$

60024 DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL 17,000$   $ 8,449 10,140$  35,000$

60025 DEPRECIATION 350,000$  $ -   350,000$  350,000$

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $2,484,980 $1,655,185 $2,349,080 $2,655,000

Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency Pump Fee (900 AF @ $140) 

Includes GM retirement in Dec 23 and AGM Promotion, Includes PTO Payout for 
GM retirement

EXPENSES (Part 1 of 2)

Account 
Number

BUDGET  TOTAL AS OF  ESTIMATED THRU JUNE  GENERAL MGR RECOMMENDED 

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cal Mutual JPRIMA $81,903 for 2023 + increase for 2024, renewal in April

Comments

Casitas Costs, base fees + usage, ave of 22%/year for 5 years

Audit $17K, UVRGA Audit $13.5K Engr & Drafting Services $20K, Zworld GIS 
23.4K Support, Cross Connection Control $1,700

Employer contribution of 10.10% & 7.68% plus UAL classic $46,000. Employees 
paying their portion of 7.0% & 7.75%. Includes a $5K contingency. 

SDRMA Workers Compensation, projected to stay low due to no claims

12 Regular meetings, 2 Special Meetings, 4 committee meetings, 10 Adjudication 
meetings, possible compensation increase in 2023/24

Leak Repair

Only applies to the first $7,000 of employee wages

Social Security 6.2%, Medicare 1.45% (employer)

PTO Accrual for employees.

 Anticipated 10% Increase in January, one less employee after December 2023

Vehicle maintenance costs remain low
CUSI/CYMA $1900+1195+3800=$6895 (3/7/22) LogMeIn/Splashtop: $750,  ESRI 
Cloud GIS 10k,  LF Annual+Monthly Online Backup $1149+($220*12)=$3789, Fire 
Extinguisher Maint $383, MiTec $20k, Zoom ($100/mo + $149.9/year=$1350) 
Adobe $600, Aerial Image for GIS $4,000 even years. Replace office flooring 
$12,000 Computer Upgrades $2,000 (scanner and printer), Update Website 
$4 5k)

No longer used, postage machine rental moved to 70011 budget amount moved 
to 60012
Monitoring; pipe, fittings; $9K chlorine, fittings Division of Drinking Water $10K/Yr, 
every 3 yrs = +$10K for Sanitary Survey (2022). County Encroachment Permit 
$1,200 + Actual$?, SWRCB annual permit $10,00, NPDES permit $400, Uniforms, 
Recording Groundwater rights/usage $250, DigAlert, Annual APCD Fee for 
Emergency Generators $1,246, Weed abatement $10,000, Tank Inspection 
$25,000 Nov. 2023, County Conditional Use Permit $40,000 then $5K/year

Fuel prices have stayed high

Motor-Panel Insp & Maint $5,700, Clay Valve Maint $3K, Itron Annual $2,089, 
ClearSCADA $2,030, Win911 (SCADA Call outs) $495, Generator maint. $1,000,  
SCADA $20K , LogMeIn $350, Maint. Well/Bster pump $25K

120 meters per year (20 yr mtr life) = $65,000 per year. Monthly Beacon = 
$0.89/mtr (1020+120 = 1140*.89*12=$12,200 FY 23/24)

Completed projects to be added to depreciation calculation

$325 per hour + Occasional Employment Attorney @ $350/hr Employment 
Attorney for Personnel Policy Review ($3k)

Page 2 of 4

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 39 of 112



VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Draft FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

June 21, 2023

FYE 2024 (2023/2024)

2022-2023 4/30/2023 2023 2023-2024

70001 UTILITIES 145,000$                     $                   100,267 133,692$                     154,000$                                  

70002 TELEPHONE & INTERNET 14,300$                        $                        9,392 11,268$                       15,000$                                    

70003 LAFCO FEES 1,616$                          $                        1,316 1,400$                         2,000$                                       

70004 BANK FEES, AND MISCELLANEOUS 14,400$                        $                        8,058 9,672$                         16,000$                                    

70005 MEMBERSHIP DUES,  SUBSCRIPTIONS 25,000$                        $                      18,024 21,624$                       25,000$                                    

70006 PUBLIC RELATIONS, EDUCATION 14,400$                        $                        3,656 5,484$                         13,900$                                    

70007 LEGAL NOTICES 4,000$                          $                        3,156 3,157$                         -$                                          

70008 ELECTIONS 4,100$                          $                              -   -$                             -$                                          

70009 DIRECTORS TRAVEL & EDUCATION 5,000$                          $                           283 1,236$                         5,000$                                       

70010 SECURITY 5,000$                          $                        3,280 3,936$                         5,000$                                       

70011 POSTAGE 13,000$                        $                        8,709 10,452$                       13,000$                                    

70012 OFFICE SUPPLIES 17,000$                        $                      14,017 16,824$                       21,000$                                    

70014 VENTURA RIVER WATERSHED ISSUES, CHANNELKEEPER LAWSUIT 55,000$                        $                        4,711 15,652$                       50,000$                                    

70017 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 4,000$                          $                              -   -$                             4,000$                                       

70018 CONSERVATION 40,000$                        $                      18,907 32,692$                       100,000$                                  

TOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 361,816$                    193,776$                    267,089$                     423,900$                                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,846,796$                 1,848,961$                 2,616,169$                  3,078,900$                               

BALANCE TO THE CIP 14,004$                       93,482$                      (400,796)$                    2,400$                                       

Comments

Wire transfers ($50 ea), Check Returns ($35 ea), fees for ACH & Positive Pay 
($800/mo), fees for VANCO and RDC-Direct Send ($100 + $100 + .12/item) FSA 
Monthly Fee ($75)

Average monthly for billing is $800*12=$9,600 plus postage machine and 
miscellaneous mailings $1,400

Edison actual projected,  Sewer: $1,600/yr

Printer cartridges,RICOH Printer $2,100, form costs, office supplies, Janitor 
$290/mo*12=$3,480, Data Prose bill printing costs + bill stuffers ($300/mo + bill 
stuffers=approx $5k)

Digital Security, per Contract with LTE failover

Watershed Council & Ventura Adjuducation 

Annual LAFCO Fees. 

Account 
Number

AWA Operators workshop $100x3=$300, AWA Symposium $225, ACWA Annual 
Conference $950 Registration + Travel $400+Hotel $600+ Meals $100, Banners 
$480 ($120 ea), AWA meetings $30 x 3 x 7 = $630, AWA CCWUA $30 x 2 x 5 = 
$300, Tuition Reimbursement $5k, Lunch and Learn meetings $1500, Employee 
Recognition $500

No Prop 218 Public Hearing Notice

Telephone, Internet Service, Cell Phones, Tablets for GIS

 ESTIMATED THRU JUNE  GENERAL MGR RECOMMENDED 

Not an election year.  2022 cost was $3,961

EXPENSES (Part 2 of 2)

Based on actual Year to Year.

VRIF Grant Matching requirement for: Landowner Incentive Program, rainwater 
capture, grey water reuse, re-landscape

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

AWA $855, OVNews $75, VCSDA $175, ACWA $10,000, Water Education Fund 
$45, CSDA $7,615, AWWA $110, Engineering Registration $150, CRWA $1,180, 
AWA-CCWUC $75, CalMutualWA $500, VCAPCD $1,246

Director Training, Education: AWA, VCSDA monthly mtgs

 TOTAL AS OF BUDGET

Page 3 of 4

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 40 of 112



VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

Draft FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

June 21, 2023

FYE 2024 (2023/2024)

2022-2023 4/30/2023 2023 2023-2024

13106 Re-Roof Main & Operators Offices, Replace Fascia Boards w/ rot proof boards -$                             -$                            -$                             50,000$                                    

13014 Well #6 Retaining Wall 15,000$                       -$                             30,000$                                    
13040 Mixing Valve South Alto Tank 25,000$                       -$                             25,000$                                    
13070 Santa Ana Blvd move pipe out of back yards 45,000$                       20$                             40,000$                       -$                                          
13057 Re-plumb Encino & Thomas PRV Vaults - Design 12,000$                       1,073$                        12,000$                       -$                                          
13061 Well #2 & 3 Pump & Panel Replacement 325,000$                    2,370$                        2,370$                         300,435$                                  
13104 Upgrade SCADA Radios 35,012$                       34,997$                      35,012$                       -$                                          
13105 Casitas Springs Emergency Fire Flow Pump 250,000$                    20,073$                      17,000$                       41,000$                                    
13094 Tico Mutual Annexation Project 90,000$                       23,469$                      40,000$                       20,000$                                    
13098 2023 Water Projects SRF Water Main, Tanks & Pumps, Engr, Easements 523,000$                    182,253$                    195,000$                     250,000$                                  
13100 Solar Projects, Prepare Design Build Contract 81,000$                       73,725$                      81,000$                       31,000$                                    
13099 2023 Water Projects SRF Potholing 120,000$                    69,832$                      70,309$                       -$                                          
13010 Hydrant & Valve Replacement -$                             -$                            -$                             205,000$                                  
13110 SCADA Communication Alarm & Cla-Val for emergency backfill of Parker -$                             -$                            -$                             25,000$                                    

13101 Replace 2008 F-250 Work truck 55,000$                       51,768$                      -$                             -$                                          

13092 Valve Turn Machine Upgrade to add GPS for GIS 4,500$                         -$                            -$                             -$                                          

13054 Computer Upgrades 8,000$                         1,810$                        1,810$                         -$                                          

INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSET 1,588,512$                 461,390$                    494,501$                     927,435$                                  

DEPRECIATION (as revenue) 350,000$                    350,000$                     350,000$                                  

NET EXPENDITURES: Operating Expenses + Fixed Asset Investment 4,085,308$                 2,760,670$                  3,656,335$                               

TOTAL NET INCOME (LOSS) (1,224,508)$                (545,297)$                    (925,035)$                                 

Budget:6/30/23
Estimated through 

6/30/23
Proj: 6/30/2024

1,676,876$                 2,356,087$                  1,431,052$                               

AUTO EQUIPMENT 

STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS

Replace SCADA radios & antennas and relocate antennas

PROJECTED ENDING CASH BALANCE:

Completed

No longer necessary 

Finish pump design and specs: Phoenix $57,864

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

 TOTAL AS OF 

Project Completed
To be completed Fall 2023

Phoenix Design Engineering

Retaining wall, gravel pad (Postponed due to COVID-19)

Awarded to Phoenix = $114,227, Vent. Energy Bald. & Park. Interconct agr. 

SHOP EQUIPMENT

Develop a communication failure alarm and Integrate 4" ClaVal at Parker

FIXED ASSETS BUDGET

Needed prior to solar installation

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Moved to 60018 due to Capitialization Policy

 GENERAL MGR RECOMMENDED 

Being tracked in 2023 Water Projects 13098

LAFCo Application, Design Engineering , SRF coordination

Pump & Panel Replacement, $376,000, FY 21/22=$93,195, FY 22/23=$2,370

Comments

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Being tracked in 2023 Water Projects 13098
Needed before using CMWD water to keep water fresh

 ESTIMATED THRU JUNE Account 
Number

Page 4 of 4

ATTACHMENT 5A

Agenda Packet - Page 41 of 112



PROPOSED

'INFLATION FACTOR: 1.030 1.090 1.135 1.175 1.215 1.255 1.295 1.335 1.375 1.415

3.0% 6.0% 4.5% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%

Fiscal Year beginning July 1 ending June 30 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 2031-32 2032-33

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Hydrant Replacement - 264 ea replace 5 old Hyd and 5 infill Hyd every 
two years $159,650 $188,325 $200,725 $213,125
Valve Replacement - 500 ea replace 10 every two years $35,020 $41,310 $44,030 $46,750
Re-Plumb Encino & Thomas PRV Vaults $567,260
Ojai Terrace (Vons Tract) Old Pipe Replacement $1,106,910
Emergency Casitas Turnout: Carillo Rd. or La Paz Ojai Terrace? $545,875
Pressure Reducing Station Encino @ Thomas $133,055
Johnny Cash Way Main Replacement $197,963
Santa Ana Water Main - relocate out of back yards $1,962,000
Loma Drive - Villanova to 1,000' North $1,185,770
CASITAS SPRINGS FIRE BOOSTER PUMP (when lake < elev 480 ± 
Not Scheduled) $8,750
Nova Lane In-Fill Pipe HWY 33/150 to Well #6 $838,000
Casitas Springs hydrants on Hwy 33 utilizing easements $1,270,070
Old Grade @ Entrance to Mobile Home Park, extend pipe & add $74,860
1418 Trusty Lane, extend pipe & add hydrant, 350' of 6" $131,388
9220 Nye Road, extend pipe & add hydrant,  172' of 6" $77,385

Solar at Baldwin Site (includes Offices) $428,099 $445,773
Solar at Parker Site $271,694 $282,910

Tico Annexation Construction & LAFCo $1,301,000

WELLS
WELL # 1 - Drilled 1990, during next cleaning: do spinner log & plug 
bottom & replace open impeller pump $13,254 $187,622
WELL #4 - Maintenance Replace pump with VFD Water Lube $15,260 $353,750
WELL #6  Maintenance (WELL # 5, Curtis) $15,746
WELL #7 Maintenance $22,702

SCADA SYSTEM
SCADA SYSTEM UPGRADE $162,955 $199,582

TANKS
BALDWIN TANK North,  1997,  184,000 Gal, 38.67' Dia 24.1' H 
Replace 2024 $1,907,000
BALDWIN TANK South, 2006, 184,000 Gal 39' Dia 24' H Replace 
2046 $131,697
ALTO TANKS N & S  1998, 753,000 Gal 65.4 Dia X 32.17 H  Replace 
2038 $113,122 $262,671

PARKER TANK, 2001, 529,000 Gal, 80.17' Dia x 16' H Replace 2041 $62,541
Add 2nd Parker Tank $2,878,000
Tank Inspection every 5 years. Includes minor repairs. $24,219 $28,206

PUMPS
Baldwin Booster Station, Pump & Motor Rebuild $1,734,700
Baldwin Switch Gear Replacement $837,100
Baldwin Booster Station, Flood Proofing - Raise Chlorine, build barrier $1,334,000
PARKER BOOSTER STATION, 2002, Pump & Motor Rebuild with 
VFD's $198,000
PARKER VFD to Zone 5 $320,000

MISCELLANEOUS
Baldwin Generator Sound Wall $88,000
Water Rate development by consultant once every 10-years $58,554
Miscellaneous water system items per historical average $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL Water System Improvements $203,420 $14,273,802 $919,191 $256,517 $385,242 $2,224,967 $335,361 $1,602,708 $937,447 $1,567,726

SHOP/MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT
Machines, Tools, Equipment, etc., Bumper Crane, Valve Turn Trailer, 
Pipe Locator $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL Shop/Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

OFFICE EQUIPMENT
Machines, Computers, Copiers, etc. $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Software, $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUBTOTAL Office Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

AUTO / EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
FORD F-550, 2000 Dump Truck (Replace with a F-350 Utility Truck) $65,042
FORD F-350, 2017 $54,209
FORD F-350, 2019 (Crane & Utility bed) $89,077
FORD F-250, 2022
Chevy Bolt 2018 (new battery 2022)
JEEP, Meter Reader, 1969, Right hand drive  (Retire in 2024)
BACKHOE, 2016

SUBTOTAL Auto / Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $65,042 $54,209 $0 $89,077 $0
TOTAL ALL ABOVE ITEMS $203,420 $14,273,802 $919,191 $256,517 $385,242 $2,290,009 $389,570 $1,602,708 $1,026,524 $1,567,726

10 Year Rolling Average $2,292,000 $2,320,000 $903,000 $855,000 $853,000 $853,000 $677,000 $703,000 $613,000 $568,000
Revenues needed from surplus Operating Revenues each year: $2,292,000 $2,320,000 $903,000 $855,000 $853,000 $853,000 $677,000 $703,000 $613,000 $568,000

Fiscal Year beginning July 1 ending June 30 2023 - 2024 2024 - 2025 2025 - 2026 2026 - 2027 2027 - 2028 2028 - 2029 2029 - 2030 2030 - 2031 2031- 2032 2032 - 2033

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN - June 21, 2023

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 42 of 112



$93,343 

$541,371 

$284,265 

$840,070 

$1,440,657 

$380,665 

$1,265,310 

$963,321 

$1,273,720 
$1,069,678 

($1,000,000)

($500,000)

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

20
23

‐2
02

4

20
24

‐2
02

5

20
25

‐2
02

6

20
26

‐2
02

7

20
27

‐2
02

8

20
28

‐2
02

9

20
29

‐2
03

0

20
30

‐2
03

1

20
31

‐2
03

2

20
32

‐2
03

3

Fiscal Year

10 Year Financial Plan ‐ FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR CIP
June 21, 2023

CIP w/ $10M 0 Interest Loan, $2.4M SRF low interest loan 

ATTACHMENT 5B

Agenda Packet - Page 43 of 112



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 44 of 112



 

DATE: June 21, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO PREPARE A CONSOLIDATION AGREEMENT 
WITH CASITAS MUTUAL WATER COMPANY 

 
SUMMARY 

Casitas Mutual serves about 83 customers on the west side of Hwy 33 in Casitas 
Springs.  The Ventura River Water District serves the east side of Casitas Springs. On 
June 3, 2023 the Casitas Mutual Shareholders voted 83% to merge with the Ventura 
River Water District.   

The Casitas Mutual service area needs new pipes, fire hydrants and meters.  Casitas 
Mutual has obtained a $980,000 grant from the California Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) to replace some of their pipes and meters.  The State Division of 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan Program will provide 100% funding through 
a non-repayable grant for the remaining costs to upgrade the water system.     

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The General Manager recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to 
work with the District’s Legal Counsel and Casitas Mutual Water Company to prepare a 
draft Consolidation Agreement and return it to the Board for consideration at a future 
meeting.     

 
BACKGROUND 

The Ventura River Water District was formed by the consolidation of three mutual water 
companies and two County Water Districts. The District is currently in the process of 
annexing the Tico Mutual Water Company (about 40 homes).  Tico Mutual Water has 
similar needs of new pipes, hydrants and meters. The cost of annexing and improving 
the Tico service area is being paid for by the State and Tico shareholders at no cost to 
the District. 

Benefits to VRWD to annexing with Casitas Mutual: 

Financial Incentive: As an incentive to annex a small mutual water company the State 
Division of Drinking Water (DDW) is offering VRWD a $10M, 20-year interest free loan 
to use on unrelated District capital improvements. The DDW offers a $10M loan for 
each mutual water company annexed.    

Fire Protection: The new Casitas Mutual piping system will include a pipe parallel to 
Hwy 33 with fire hydrants.  These hydrants will provide fire protection for existing VRWD 
customers who live on the east side of Hwy 33 and currently have no fire protection.  
This will save VRWD about $2M by eliminating the construction of a pipe, fire hydrants 

Agenda Packet - Page 45 of 112



 
Casitas Mutual Water – Consolidation 
Page 2 of 2 
 

and looping the VRWD pipes. This cost will  be covered by the State funded 
improvements for Casitas Mutual. The interconnection of the two systems will improve 
the fire flow capability of the existing VRWD system and the new system that will serve 
the Casitas Mutual area. It will also improve water quality for all Casitas Springs 
customers by improving circulation.  

Implementation:   

Planning & Design 

1. Prepare map of Casitas Mutual service area parcels, zoning and land use. 

2. Preliminary Engineering Report. 

3. Administer $980 DWR grant. 

4. Research existing easements to transfer to VRWD or abandon. 

5. Environmental Analysis, CEQA. 

6. LAFCo application. 

7. Plans and Specifications for proposed improvements in excess of those covered 
by DWR $980K grant. 

8. Submit Application for SRF Construction Funding. 

Construction Phase  

1. Construction and Contract Administration covered by 100% grant funding.   

Items 1-8 in the Planning and Design phase will cost about $500,000.  These costs are 
all reimbursable once the construction Grant agreement with the State is signed at the 
completion of item 8.  Unlike Tico Mutual, Casitas Mutual does not have the financial 
resources to fund the preliminary work in items 1 – 8.   

At the suggestion of Lawrence Sanchez with the State SRF funding and Mike Weil with 
DWR, a revised Scope of Work can be submitted to DWR for consideration to authorize 
money from the $980,000 grant to used for the preliminary consolidation work.  Other 
funding alternatives are possible but could take an additional year or two to implement.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
An additional zero interest loan up to $10M will be a financial benefit for VRWD 
customers and could be utilized now or beginning in about 2026 or 2027.  
 
All the improvements to the Casitas Mutual service area will be funded by the State 
Division of Drinking Water.   
 
When the Ventura River Water District takes over the improvements, the pipes, fire 
hydrants and water meters will be built to VRWD standards and be new construction.  

Agenda Packet - Page 46 of 112



 

 
DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2023-356 ADOPTION OF WATER SHORTAGE 
CONTINGENCY PLAN 

 
SUMMARY 

New State regulations require small water suppliers to prepare a Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan by July 1, 2023. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board:  

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-356 for the adoption of a Water Shortage Contingency 
Plan for the District. 

 
BACKGROUND 

In September 2021, Senate Bill 552 (SB 552) was signed by Governor Newsom and 
enacted into law. SB 552 includes new responsibilities and requirements at the local level 
to help small water suppliers* and rural communities reduce their risk of water supply amid 
a water shortage event.  
 
SB 552 requires small water suppliers to have a water shortage contingency plan 
(WSCP). The required WSCP is an abridged version of the urban water management 
plans mandated for completion by urban water suppliers every 5 years. The minimum 
requirements for the abridged water shortage contingency plan for small water suppliers 
are provided in California Water Code §10609.60 and summarized as follows: 

 
(1) Drought-planning contacts, including all of the following: 

(A) At least one contact at the water system for water shortage planning and 
response and the development of the plan. 

 
(B) Contacts for local public safety partners and potential vendors that can provide 

repairs or alternative water sources, such as well drilling contractors, water 
supply vendors, and emergency shower vendors. 

  
(C) State and local agency contacts who should be informed when a drought or 

water shortage emergency is emerging or has occurred. 
 
(D) Regional water planning groups or mutual aid networks, to the extent they exist. 

 
* Small water suppliers are defined by the State as serving between 1,000 and 2,999 connections. 

Agenda Packet - Page 47 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
Page 2 of 2 

(2) Triggering mechanisms and levels for action, including both of the following:

(A) Standard water shortage levels corresponding to progressive ranges based on
the water supply conditions. Water shortage levels shall also apply to
catastrophic interruption of water supplies, including, but not limited to, a
regional power outage, an earthquake, a fire, and other potential emergency
events.

(B) Water shortage mitigation, response, customer communications, enforcement,
and relief actions that align with the water shortage levels required by
subparagraph (A).

Additionally, the WSCP must be available for public viewing on the District’s website.  

The State recommended that preparation of the WSCP be completed in collaboration with 
nearby water suppliers to ensure consistent water supply messaging throughout a region. 
This WSCP is consistent with Casitas Municipal Water District’s approved Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan and was prepared in coordination with Meiners Oaks Water 
District. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no cost to the District to adopt a Water Shortage Contingency Plan. 

Attachments: 

7A – Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
7B – Resolution 2023-355 

Agenda Packet - Page 48 of 112



Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan for the 
Ventura River Water 
District 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 49 of 112



 
 
 

Water Supply Contingency Plan  
for  

Ventura River Water District 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

409 OLD BALDWIN RD, OJAI, CA 93023 

PUBLIC WATER SYSTEM: CA5610022 

JULY 1, 2023 
  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 50 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 3 of 20 

Table of Contents 

Summary ……………………………………………………………………………………...4 
Section I: Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent ........................................................ 4 
Section II: Public Involvement ......................................................................................... 5 
Section III: Public Education ............................................................................................ 5 
Section IV: Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups .......................................... 5 
Section V: Authorization ................................................................................................. 5 
Section VI: Application .................................................................................................... 5 
Section VII: Definitions ..................................................................................................... 6 
Section VIII: Summary of Water Shortage Stage Triggers and Response Actions ................... 7 
Section IX: Descriptions of Water Shortage Stages – Triggers and Responses ..................... 9 
Stage 1 -- VOLUNTARY Water Shortage Conditions ................................................................. 10 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 10 

Response Actions: .......................................................................................................... 10 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 10 

Stage 2 – WARNING Water Shortage Conditions ...................................................................... 11 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 11 

Response Actions: .......................................................................................................... 11 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 11 

Stage 3 – EMINENT Water Shortage Conditions ....................................................................... 12 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 12 

Response Actions: .......................................................................................................... 12 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 12 

Stage 4 -- SEVERE Water Shortage Conditions ........................................................................ 13 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 13 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 13 

Stage 5  -- CRITICAL Water Shortage Conditions ...................................................................... 14 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Response Actions: .......................................................................................................... 14 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 14 

Stage 6 – CATASTROPHIC Water Shortage Conditions ........................................................... 15 

Trigger: ............................................................................................................................ 15 

Response Actions: .......................................................................................................... 15 

Termination: .................................................................................................................... 17 

Section X: Notification Methods; Public Safety and Support Services Contacts .................. 18 
Notification Methods ................................................................................................................... 18 

Description of Customer Notification Methods: ........................................................................... 18 

Public Safety Contacts: ............................................................................................................... 19 

Support Services Contacts: ........................................................................................................ 20 

Section XI: Enforcement ................................................................................................ 20 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 51 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 4 of 20 

 
Summary 

 
This Water Shortage Contingency Plan (the “WSCP”) is to provide guidance for how the 
Ventura River Water District (the “District”) intends to act in the event of an actual water 
shortage condition. The District’s mission is to reliably distribute high-quality water, while 
making effective use of water resources in a professional, knowledgeable, 
environmentally sustainable, and fiscally responsible manner. Reliable, high quality water 
service is critical to an economically and environmentally vibrant community. This WSCP 
is part of a management policy for improved preparedness for droughts and other impacts 
on water supplies.  
 
The WSCP plans for a water supply shortage and provides pre-planned guidance for 
managing and mitigating a shortage by defining six potential water shortage stages. 
Stages 1 - 5 address a slowly developing drought and are tethered to Casitas Municipal 
Water District’s Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP). Stages 1 through 5  
are defined based on Casitas lake levels. Stage 6 is associated with a catastrophic 
interruption of water supplies such as an earthquake, fire, regional power outage or other 
emergency. 
 
The District’s water shortage planning is aimed at addressing supply shortages ranging 
from a slowly developing drought to sudden and potentially catastrophic interruptions, 
such as major system failures and/or earthquakes or other natural disasters. Stage 1 
through 5 address drought conditions, and Stage 6 reflects a catastrophic emergency in 
which the Emergency Response Plan would be implemented. By having a plan in place, 
the District can plan and respond to actual conditions with predictability and 
accountability. 
 
This document was prepared in accordance with Water Code Section 10609.6 and 
contains all the mandatory elements. This WSCP is consistent with Casitas Municipal 
Water District’s (“Casitas”) Water Shortage Contingency Plan and prepared in 
coordination with Meiners Oaks Water District to ensure consistent water supply 
messaging of local water supplies.  
 
Section I: Declaration of Policy, Purpose, and Intent 

In order to conserve the available water supply and protect the integrity of public water 
system (PWS) supply facilities, with particular regard for domestic water use, sanitation, 
and fire protection, to protect and preserve public health, welfare, and safety and minimize 
the adverse impacts of water supply shortage or other water supply emergency 
conditions, the District hereby adopts the following regulations and restrictions on the 
delivery and consumption of water through Resolution 2023-356 Adoption of Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan. 

Water uses regulated or prohibited under this WSCP are considered to be non-essential 
and continuation of such uses during a Stage 5 condition are deemed to constitute a 
waste of water subjecting the offender(s) to enforcement as defined in Section XI of the 
WSCP. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 52 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 5 of 20 

Section II: Public Involvement 

Opportunity for the public to provide input on the WSCP was provided by the District at a 
properly noticed Board meeting on June 21, 2023.  

Section III: Public Education 

The District will regularly provide the public with information about the WSCP, including 
information about the conditions under which each stage of the WSCP is to be initiated 
or terminated and the drought response measures to be implemented in each stage. 
Detailed information on public education is provided in Section X of the WSCP.  

Section IV: Coordination with Regional Water Planning Groups 

The service area of the District is located within the Casitas Municipal Water District 
regional water planning area. The regional water planning area assessment documents 
were considered in the development of the WSCP. A copy of the final WSCP was posted 
on the District’s website (venturariverwd.com) on June 22, 2023. 

Section V: Authorization 

The Board will approve the applicable provisions of this WSCP upon determination that 
such implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, and welfare. The 
General Manager, or designee, shall have the authority to initiate or terminate drought or 
other water supply emergency response measures as described in this WSCP. The 
contact information for the General Manager is 805-646-3403 and via email at: 
Office@venturariverwd.com. 

Section VI: Application 

The provisions of this WSCP shall apply to all persons, customers, and property utilizing 
water provided by the District. The terms “person” and “customer” as used in the WSCP 
may include individuals, corporations, partnerships, associations, and all other legal 
entities.  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 53 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 6 of 20 

Section VII: Definitions  

For the purposes of this WSCP, the following definitions shall apply: 

Conservation:  those practices, techniques, and technologies that reduce the 
consumption of water, reduce the loss or waste of water, improve the efficiency in 
the use of water, or increase the recycling and reuse of water so that a supply is 
conserved and made available for future or alternative uses.  
 
Customer: any person, company, or organization using water supplied by the 
District. 
 
Domestic water use:  water use for personal needs or for household or sanitary 
purposes such as drinking, bathing, heating, cooking, sanitation, or for cleaning a 
residence, business, industry, or institution.  
 

 
Landscape irrigation use:  water used for the irrigation and maintenance of 
landscaped areas, whether publicly or privately owned, including residential and 
commercial lawns, gardens, golf courses, parks, rights-of-way and medians.  
 

 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 54 of 112



Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 7 of 20 

Section VIII: Summary of Water Shortage Stage Triggers and Response Actions 

The General Manager, or designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions 
on a monthly basis and shall recommend to the Board of Directors when conditions 
warrant initiation or termination of each stage of the WSCP, that is, when the specified 
“triggers” are reached. 

The triggering and termination criteria described in subsequent sections of this WSCP 
are based on: 
 
 Level of water storage in Lake Casitas; 

 
 Groundwater well elevations and/or well production capacities relative to system 

demands; 
 
 County, State or Federal Drought Emergency Orders; and 

 
 Emergencies such as fire, earthquake, etc. resulting in potential water outages. 

 
The response actions described in subsequent sections of this WSCP are based on the 
following general precepts: 
 

 Conservation techniques employed include progressively implementing more 
strict water use policies and restrictions, primarily focused on outdoor irrigation 
and increasingly restrictive water use. In natural disaster type scenarios, water 
supplies may be limited based on a per capita per day scenario.  

 
 Notification of the public is performed in a variety of ways to ensure drought or 

other water shortage messaging is received by the residents.  Depending on the 
severity of the drought stage or other water shortage condition, this may include 
messages on the District’s website, bill stuffers, drought banners and newsletter 
media. Whenever possible, messages will be provided in English and Spanish. 
Messaging will also be coordinated with the Casitas Municipal Water District 
because they provide the backup water supply for the District. 

 
 The District will coordinate with a variety of agencies, including the Casitas 

Municipal Water District, Meiners Oaks Water District, City of Ojai, Ventura 
County Environmental Health Division, State Water Board’s Division of Drinking 
Water, and the Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency (UVRGA).  In the event 
of severe water shortages, the District will also coordinate with Ventura County 
Public Health to support County registered vulnerable persons, and Ventura 
County Office of Emergency Services (OES).

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 55 of 112



The following table summarizes each water shortage stage, specified triggers, response 
actions and termination actions. Additional information for each stage is provided in the 
subsequent sections. 

Response 
Stage  Event  Trigger  Response Action  Termination Action 

STAGE 1 
VOLUNTARY 

Normal 
conditions. 

Lake Casitas level 
between 100% ‐ 50% 

Encourage water conservation 
practices, water waste 
prohibitions, and drought‐
tolerant landscaping. 
Ongoing water conservation 
campaign. 
Voluntary 20% reduction in 
water use. 

In place indefinitely during 
normal conditions. 

STAGE 2 
WARNING 

Anticipated 
drought 
conditions. 
  

Lake Casitas level 
between 50% ‐ 40% 
 
Minor water outage due 
to minor distribution 
equipment failure 
and/or small power 
outages. 

Encourage drought‐tolerant 
landscaping and water 
conservation. 
Outdoor water budget reduced 
by 20%. 
Ongoing water conservation 
campaign. 

Lake Casitas level above 
50%. 
 
Upon termination of Stage 
2, Stage 1 becomes 
operative unless otherwise 
specified.  

STAGE 3 
EMINENT 

Below normal 
precipitation for a 
prolonged period. 
  

Lake Casitas level 
between 40% ‐ 30% 
 
Serious water outage 
due to distribution 
equipment failure 
and/or power outages. 

Mandatory 30% reduction in 
water use. 
Outdoor water budget reduced 
by 30%.  
Intensify water conservation 
campaign. 
Consider increasing Abusive 
Water Waste Penalty. 

Lake Casitas level above 
40%. 
 
Upon termination of Stage 
3, Stage 2 becomes 
operative unless otherwise 
specified.  

STAGE 4 
SEVERE 

Below normal 
precipitation for a 
prolonged period. 
  

Lake Casitas level 
between 30% ‐ 25% 

Mandatory 40% reduction in 
water use. 
Outdoor water budget reduced 
by 40%. 
Intensify water conservation 
campaign. 
Consider increasing Abusive 
Water Waste Penalty. 

Lake Casitas level above 
30%. 
 
Upon termination of Stage 
4, Stage 3 becomes 
operative unless otherwise 
specified.  

STAGE 5 
CRITICAL 

Below normal 
precipitation for a 
prolonged period.  
  

Lake Casitas level 
between 25% ‐ 0% 

Outdoor water budget reduced 
by 50%, then transition to 0% as 
lake level drops.  
Consider setting health and 
safety allocations on a per 
capita amount. 
Consider increasing Abusive 
Water Waste Penalty. 

Lake Casitas level above 
25%. 
 
Upon termination of Stage 
5, Stage 4 becomes 
operative unless otherwise 
specified.  

STAGE 6 
CATASTROPHIC 

Complete water 
interruption. 
 
Water 
contamination. 

Well/pump failure 
and/or major 
tank/transmission main 
failure and/or severe 
power outage. 
Well and/or distribution 
system contamination. 
Natural disaster that 
interrupts water supply. 

Restrict use for health and 
sanitation purposes only. 
Reduce as much usage as 
possible. 
Distribute health advisories; 
may prohibit use completely. 
Restrict outdoor water use 
completely. 

Interruption is repaired or a 
backup water supply has 
been provided. 
Health advisory lifted by 
DDW. 
Upon termination of Stage 
6, stage in effect 
immediately prior to trigger 
of Stage 6 becomes 
operative unless otherwise 
specified.  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 56 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 9 of 20 

Section IX: Descriptions of Water Shortage Stages – Triggers and Responses 

The primary source of water available to the District is the from the Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Basin. The sustainable yield of the basin is estimated to be between ~5,500 
to 5,600 AF/year (2022, UVRGA Groundwater Sustainability Plan). The groundwater 
basin has demonstrated the ability to quickly recharge within any year with sufficient 
rainfall.  However, the basin has a very small amount of groundwater storage which 
rapidly and naturally drains to the Ventura River and the ocean during dry periods. During 
extended drought periods, the groundwater basin can become depleted due to lack of 
recharge, pumping, natural drainage and evapotranspiration. The Lake Casitas surface 
water supply serves as the back-up water supply to the groundwater supply during 
extended droughts. The drought response triggers are based on the level of water storage 
in Lake Casitas. 
 
The District’s water shortage planning is aimed at addressing supply shortages ranging 
from a slowly developing drought to sudden and potentially catastrophic interruptions, 
such as major system failures and/or earthquakes or other natural disasters. Stage 1 
through 5 address drought conditions, and Stage 6 reflects a catastrophic emergency in 
which the Emergency Response Plan would be implemented.  
 
The goals of the Staged Demand Reduction are to: 

(1) Conserve water supply for the greatest priority and public benefit; and 
(2) Mitigate the water shortage effects on public health and safety. 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 57 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 10 of 20 

Stage 1 -- VOLUNTARY Water Shortage Conditions 

Target: Achieve a voluntary 20% percent reduction water usage. 

Trigger: 

Enacted when Lake Casitas storage is between 100% - 50% of capacity. A 
voluntary 20% demand reduction is in effect. 

Response Actions: 

(a) The interties with Casitas Municipal Water District will be exercised annually, 
except the Villanova intertie which is exercised every two months to ensure proper 
operation.  
 

(b) Abusive Water Waste Penalty remains in effect so customers know when they 
are using more water than necessary and are wasting it. 
 

(c) Water customers are requested to voluntarily limit landscape irrigation use to the 
hours of 6:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m.  
 

(d) Monitor groundwater elevations, production rates and demand rates, and be 
prepared to activate Well #6 if supplemental use of Lake Casitas water is 
imminent. 
 

(e)  Water conservation banners installed during summer months. 

Notification Method(s) (as described in Article X below) and Frequency: 

Methods: 1, 2, and 4 (via monthly bills) – Permanent website, monthly outreach 

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to 
coordinate future actions. 

Termination:  

Stage 1 of the WSCP always remains operative unless superseded by a more 
severe stage. 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 58 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 11 of 20 

Stage 2 – WARNING Water Shortage Conditions 

Target: Achieve a 20% percent reduction in water usage. 

Trigger: 

Enacted when Lake Casitas storage is between 50% - 40% of capacity and the 
Casitas Municipal Water District has declared a Stage 2 drought condition with a 
mandatory 20% demand reduction. 

Response Actions:  

(a) The interties with Casitas Municipal Water District will be exercised annually, 
except the Villanova intertie which is exercised every two months to ensure proper 
operation.  

(b) Continue to organize and ensure joint messaging and actions between Casitas 
Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District on future drought stage 
responses.  

(f) Monitor groundwater elevations, production rates and demand rates, and be 
prepared to activate Well #6 if supplemental use of Lake Casitas water is imminent.  
 

(g) Water conservation banners installed during summer months. 
 

Notification Method(s) and Frequency: 

Methods: 1, 2, 3, and 5 (via bill and separate conservation flyer). At least monthly 
outreach.  

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to 
coordinate future actions. 
 

Termination:  

Stage 2 of the WSCP may be rescinded when all the conditions listed as triggering 
events have ceased to exist. Upon termination of Stage 2, Stage 1 becomes 
operative unless otherwise specified.  

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 59 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 12 of 20 

Stage 3 – EMINENT Water Shortage Conditions 

Target:  Achieve a 30% percent reduction in total water usage. 

Trigger: 

Enacted when Lake Casitas storage is between 40% - 30% of capacity and the 
Casitas Municipal Water District has declared a Stage 3 drought condition with a 
mandatory 30% demand reduction. 

Response Actions:  

(a) The interties with Casitas Municipal Water District will be exercised annually, 
except the Villanova intertie which is exercised every two months to ensure proper 
operation.  

(b) Continue to organize and ensure joint messaging and actions between Casitas 
Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District on future drought stage 
responses. Joint public workshops may be appropriate for messaging.  

(c) Increase conservation messaging with banners, bill inserts, website and 
newsletter. 

(d) Consider increasing the Abusive Water Waste Penalty. 

(e) Monitor groundwater elevations, production rates and demand rates, and be 
prepared to activate Well #6 if supplemental use of Lake Casitas water is imminent.   

Notification Method(s) and Frequency: 

Methods: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 (via bill and separate conservation flyer), 6.  At least monthly 
outreach.  

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to 
coordinate future actions. 
 

Termination: 

Stage 3 of the WSCP may be rescinded when all the conditions listed as triggering 
events have ceased to exist. Upon termination of Stage 3, Stage 2 becomes 
operative unless otherwise specified. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 60 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 13 of 20 

Stage 4 -- SEVERE Water Shortage Conditions 

Target: Achieve a 40% percent reduction in total water usage. 

Trigger:  

Enacted when Lake Casitas storage is between 30% - 25% of capacity and the 
Casitas Municipal Water District has declared a Stage 4 drought condition with a 
mandatory 40% demand reduction. 

Response Actions:  

(a) The interties with Casitas Municipal Water District will be exercised annually, 
except the Villanova intertie which is exercised every two months to ensure proper 
operation.  

(b) Continue to organize and ensure joint messaging and actions between Casitas 
Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District on future drought stage 
responses. Joint public workshops may be appropriate for messaging.  

(c) Increase conservation messaging with banners, bill inserts, website and 
newsletter. 

(d) Consider increasing the Abusive Water Waste Penalty. 

(h) Monitor groundwater elevations, production rates and demand rates, and be 
prepared to activate Well #6 if supplemental use of Lake Casitas water is imminent.  

Notification Method(s) and Frequency: 

Methods: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 (via bill and separate conservation flyer), 6.  At least monthly 
outreach.  

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to 
coordinate future actions. 
 

Termination:  

Stage 4 of the WSCP may be rescinded when all the conditions listed as triggering 
events have ceased to exist. Upon termination of Stage 4, Stage 3 becomes 
operative unless otherwise specified.  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 61 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 14 of 20 

Stage 5  -- CRITICAL Water Shortage Conditions 

 
Target:  Achieve a 50% percent reduction in total water usage. 

Trigger: 

Enacted when Lake Casitas storage is between 25% - 0% of capacity and the Casitas 
Municipal Water District has declared a Stage 5 drought condition with a 
mandatory 50% demand reduction. 

Response Actions:  

(a) The interties with Casitas Municipal Water District will be exercised annually, 
except the Villanova intertie which is exercised every two months to ensure proper 
operation.  

(b) Continue to organize and ensure joint messaging and actions between Casitas 
Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District on future Drought Stage 
Responses. Joint public workshops may be appropriate for messaging.  

(c) Increase conservation messaging with banners, bill inserts, website and 
newsletter. 

(d) Decrease flushing from regular flushing routine to only as needed for colored water 
or other water quality issues. 

(e) Monitor groundwater elevations, production rates and demand rates, and be 
prepared to activate Well #6 if supplemental use of Lake Casitas water is imminent.  

 
(f) As Lake Casitas levels drop plan for additional decreases in outdoor use and 

potential per capita refinement of the Health and Safety allocations.  
 
Notification Method(s) and Frequency: 

Methods: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 (via bill and separate conservation flyer), 6.  At least monthly 
outreach.  

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to coordinate 
future actions. 

Termination:  

Stage 5 of the WSCP may be rescinded when all the conditions listed as triggering events 
have ceased to exist. Upon termination of Stage 5, Stage 4 becomes operative 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 62 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 15 of 20 

unless otherwise specified.  

Stage 6 – CATASTROPHIC Water Shortage Conditions 

Target:  Cease all outdoor irrigation. Limit use to essential uses. 

Trigger: 

Enacted when a catastrophic event occurs such that no water can be supplied due 
to infrastructure damage or failure. Such an event would trigger the implementation 
of the District’s Emergency Response Plan.  

Response Actions: 

Follow recommended response actions in most recently adopted Emergency 
Response Plan. 

In the event that water outages occur and the Casitas Municipal Water District 
interties are not available, the District will coordinate with the County Office of 
Emergency Services and/or CalWARN as soon as possible if hauling of water is 
needed.  

In the event that the water shortage threatens public health, safety or welfare, the 
District will consider setting health and safety allocations on a per capita basis. The 
per capita amount would be as defined by the District and subject to decreases 
pending the severity of the emergency. An example of such an allocation plan is 
based on 45 gallons per person per day with all outdoor uses prohibited and 
summarized as follows: 

Single-Family Residential Customers 

The allocation to residential water customers residing in a single-family dwelling 
shall be as follows: 

Persons per Household Units per Month 

1 or 2 1 - 4 

3 or 4 5 - 8 

5 or 6 9 – 12 

7 or greater 
Allowable usage will be calculated 

using 2 units per person per month. 

 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 63 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 16 of 20 

Additional decreases to the table may be required for short-term emergency 
response to earthquakes, fires, etc. Any short-term decrease (defined as less than 
72 hours) will be determined by the General Manager. 

Multi-Family Residential Customers 

The allocation to residential water customers billed from a master meter which 
jointly measures water to multiple permanent residential dwelling units (e.g., 
apartments, mobile homes, etc.) shall be allocated the same as single-family 
residential customers.  

Commercial Customers 

A monthly water allocation shall be established by the General Manager, or 
designee, for each commercial water customer. The allocation to commercial 
water customers shall be as follows: 40% of monthly water usage and no irrigation. 
All restaurants shall only provide water upon request, hotels must only wash linens 
upon exist of customers, and all commercial customers must post drought 
conservation messaging.  

Agencies Contacted: 

Contact Casitas Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District to 
coordinate future actions. 

If adequate water supply will potentially become unavailable for fire response, 
medical services, public services, etc., then the following emergency providers will 
be notified as soon as possible to ensure that adequate planning, response and 
assistance may be provided: 

Local Fire Agency: Shall be contacted immediately when any water outages are 
believed to be potentially imminent or is occurring in any part of the distribution 
system.  

Critical Service Providers (e.g., hospital, school, elder care, etc.): The hospital, 
elder care facility and school district shall be immediately contacted when any 
water outage is believed to be potentially imminent or is occurring in the distribution 
system that may in any way impact that user.  

State Water Board and/or Ventura County Environmental Health: The State 
Water Board’s Division of Drinking Water and the Ventura County Environmental 
Health Division shall be contacted when any water outage is believed to be 
potentially imminent or is occurring in the distribution system.  

County Office of Emergency Services: The County Office of Emergency 
Services may be contacted when any water outage is believed to be potentially 
imminent or is occurring in the distribution system as the result of a natural disaster 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 64 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 17 of 20 

and/or additional County or State support is needed. 

Termination:  

Stage 6 of the WSCP may be rescinded when all of the conditions listed as 
triggering events have ceased to exist. Upon termination of Stage 6, the stage in 
effect immediately prior to the trigger of Stage 6 becomes operative unless 
otherwise specified. 

  

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 65 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 18 of 20 

Section X: Notification Methods; Public Safety and Support Services Contacts 

Notification Methods 

The General Manager, or designee, shall monitor water supply and/or demand conditions 
on a monthly basis and, in accordance with the triggering criteria set forth in Section IX 
of this WSCP, shall determine if a water shortage condition exists and the severity of any 
such water shortage conditions (e.g., 1-Voluntary, 2-Warning, 3-Eminent, 4-Severe, 5-
Critical, 6-Catastrophic), and shall implement the following notification procedures 
accordingly: 

Description of Customer Notification Methods: 

The General Manager, or designee, shall notify the public by means of the following 
methods for the applicable water shortage stage, as provided in Section IX above: 

 Method 1:  Notice on the District’s website and newsletter 
 Method 2:  Notice in Ojai Valley newspaper, joint messaging with Casitas 

Municipal Water District and Meiners Oaks Water District 
 Method 3:  Email to customer listing 
 Method 4:  Direct Mail to each customer, in bill or flyer format 
 Method 5: Door to door outreach in elderly communities, County registered 

vulnerable residents, residences with high usage, and/or parts of the 
distribution system impacted by emergency 

 Method 6: Personal phone calls to elder care facilities and schools 
 Method 7: County Emergency Messaging text alert  
 Method 8: Emergency press releases to local radio and TV station.  

 

The District has a 19% Spanish speaking population, therefore Methods 1, 3, 4, and 5 
shall be provided in both English and Spanish.  

Prepared materials from Department of Water Resources, “Save Our Water Toolkit”, may 
be used as drought communication tools with the District logo added.  The link for these 
materials is provided below: 

https://saveourwater.com/en/Partner-Toolkit 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 66 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 19 of 20 

Public Safety Contacts: 

The General Manager, or designee, shall notify directly the following individuals and 
entities of restrictions or water shortages, as defined in the subsections below, as 
appropriate for each response stage. 

Organization or 
Department 

Name & Position Telephone Email 

Fire 
Department/HazMat 

Battalion Chief (805) 649-6013  

Police Department 
Ojai Police 
Department 

(805) 646-1414  

County Office of 
Emergency Services 

(OES) 

Water Agency 
Contact, Daniel 

Cohen 

(805) 654-2551 
(805) 654-2311 

dcohen@calleguas.com 

Ventura County 
Watershed Protection 

District 

 (805) 654-2018  

Ojai Valley Sanitary 
District (Wastewater) 

Jeff Palmer, 
General Manager 

(805) 646-5548 
(805) 340-5585 

jeff.palmer@ojaisan.org 

County Environmental 
Health 

 
(805) 654-2813 
(805) 654-2818 

 

Edison (Electric Utility) Erik Barlow (951) 970-5956 erik.barlow@sce.com 

State Division of 
Drinking Water 

Jeff Densmore (805) 566-1326 
jeff.densmore@waterboa

rds.ca.gov 

LARWQCB 
Renee Purdy, 

Executive 
Director 

(213) 576-6600 
renee.purdy@waterboard

s.ca.gov 

Mutual Aid Contact 

Mike Flood, 
General Manager 

of Casitas 
Municipal Water 

District 

(805) 746-2251 
(805) 649-2251 

mflood@casitaswater.com  

Meiners Oaks Water 
District 

Justin Martinez, 
General Manager 

(805) 646-2114 
(805) 297-7240 

justin@meinersoakswater
.com 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 67 of 112



 

Water Shortage Contingency Plan for Ventura River Water District Page 20 of 20 

Support Services Contacts: 

The following is a listing of support services that may be appropriate for a water shortage 
emergency.  

 

Organization or 
Department 

Name & 
Position 

Telephone Email 

Ventura River Water 
District 

Mark Albertsen, 
Lead Water 

Operator 
(805) 701-0695 mark@venturariverwd.com 

Ventura River Water 
District 

Craig Lee, Water 
Operator 

(805) 798-4895 craig@venturariverwd.com 

Ventura River Water 
District 

Sam Hall, Water 
Operator 

 
(805) 707-4461 

sam@venturariverwd.com 

Ferguson Pipe 
Supply 

Shane McBride 
(805) 310-6887 

(805) 644-7279 
shane.mcbride@ferguson.com 

Superior Tank George Marquez 
(562) 946-8804 

(800) 221-8265 
george@superiortank.com 

Edison (Electric 
Utility) 

Erik Barlow (951) 970-5956 erik.barlow@sce.com 

  
 
Section XI: Enforcement 

(a) No person shall knowingly or intentionally allow the use of water from this water 
system for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, governmental, or any 
other purpose in a manner contrary to any provision of this WSCP, or in an amount 
in excess of that permitted by the drought response stage in effect at the time 
pursuant to action taken by the General Manager, or designee, in accordance with 
provisions of this WSCP.  

(b) Any person, including a person classified as a water customer of the District, in 
apparent control of the property where a violation occurs or originates shall be 
presumed to be the violator, and proof that the violation occurred on the person’s 
property shall constitute a presumption that the person in apparent control of the 
property committed the violation, but any such person shall have the right to show 
that he/she did not commit the violation.  

(c) Abusive Water Waste Penalties shall be assessed when water use exceeds 
regulated amounts set under this WSCP.  Such excess usage is considered to be 
non-essential and deemed to constitute a waste of water. 

ATTACHMENT 7A

Agenda Packet - Page 68 of 112



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2023-355 

ADOPTION OF A WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 

WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the Ventura River Water District 
(“District”) is authorized to adopt and enforce measures and programs, including water 
conservation programs, to reduce the quantity of water used by customers for the 
purpose of conserving and preserving water supplies for human consumption, 
sanitation, and fire protection; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Water Code Section 10609.60, the District is 
required to prepare and adopt a Water Shortage Contingency Plan that includes, at a 
minimum, such drought-planning elements as described therein; and 

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors finds and declares that the adoption 
of a Water Shortage Contingency Plan is necessary and prudent as a proactive planning 
measure to protect and preserve public health, safety, and welfare by ensuring that the 
quantity of water used by customers during times of drought, water shortage, or other 
water supply emergency conditions is managed to ensure that water supply remains 
available for domestic water use, sanitation, and fire protection purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the District has prepared a Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
(Attachment 1) to describe actions and prohibitions and water use restrictions that may 
be required due to shortage, drought, or emergency conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Water Shortage Contingency Plan provides authority to the 
District’s General Manager to implement applicable provisions of the Plan upon 
determination that such implementation is necessary to protect public health, safety, 
and welfare. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Ventura 
River Water District as follows: 

1. The Ventura River Water District Water Shortage Contingency Plan, in
the form attached hereto as Attachment 1, is hereby adopted and
approved.

2. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take all steps
necessary to implement the direction in this resolution and to implement
the provisions of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan pursuant to its
terms upon determination that such implementation is necessary to
protect public health, safety, and welfare.

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 69 of 112



3. This resolution is effective immediately.

4. That, if any provision of this resolution, or any part thereof, is for any
reason held to be invalid, unenforceable, or unconstitutional, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected but shall remain in full force and
effect, and to this end the provisions of this resolution are severable.

ADOPTED this 21st day of June 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:       Attest: 

______________________________   ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President     Bert J. Rapp, Secretary 

ATTACHMENT 7B

Agenda Packet - Page 70 of 112



DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G. Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE INCREASE AND TO ADOPT 
RESOLUTION 2023-356 SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO INCREASE 
BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S COMPENSATION 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Assistant General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-356 setting a Public Hearing to discuss and receive
public comment regarding the adoption of an ordinance authorizing an increase in
the amount of compensation to be received by the members of the Board pursuant
to Water Code Section 20200 et. seq.

BACKGROUND 
Since last adjusted by Ordinance 2006-208 and adopted on February 8, 2006, the Board 
of Director’s compensation has remained at $160 for each Board meeting and for each 
other day of service rendered as a Director by request of the Board, and $100 for each 
committee meeting. 

The California Water Code (§20201) allows for future increases in compensation through 
the adoption of an ordinance. Increases may not exceed 5% for each calendar year 
following the last date of adjustment (§20202). The maximum allowed increases since 
2006 are as follows: 

Year 
Compensation 

Daily, per Board 
Mtg. 

Committee Mtg. 

2006  $             160.00   $           100.00  
2007  $             168.00   $           105.00  
2008  $             176.40   $           110.25  
2009  $             185.22   $           115.76  
2010  $             194.48   $           121.55  
2011  $             204.21   $           127.63  
2012  $             214.42   $           134.01  
2013  $             225.14   $           140.71  
2014  $             236.39   $           147.75  
2015  $             248.21   $           155.13  
2016  $             260.62   $           162.89  
2017  $             273.65   $           171.03  
2018  $             287.34   $           179.59  
2019  $             301.70   $           188.56  
2020  $             316.79   $           197.99  
2021  $             332.63   $           207.89  
2022  $             349.26   $           218.29  
2023  $             366.72   $           229.20  

Agenda Packet - Page 71 of 112



Resolution 2023-356 
Page 2 of 2 

In order for the Board to increase the compensation received by members of the Board, 
the Board must hold a public hearing to discuss the ordinance authorizing the increase 
and to receive public comment.  

If an ordinance adjusting the compensation to be paid to the members of the Board is 
adopted by the Board, the ordinance is subject to referendum if a petition protesting the 
adoption of the ordinance is submitted to the Board in accordance with Water Code 
Section 20205. Absent the submission of such a petition, the ordinance becomes effective 
60 days from the date of its adoption by the Board. 

Timeline 

 June 21, 2023 – Adopt resolution setting Public Hearing to increase Board
member compensation.

 June 30, 2023 - Advertise Public Hearing in newspaper
 July 7, 2023 – Advertise Public Hearing in newspaper
 July 19, 2023 – Hold Public Hearing & Adopt Ordinance with new Director

compensation rates
 September 20, 2023 – Approved Director compensation rates go into effect

Comparison with Other Agencies 
A survey of other agencies found the following compensation rates for Board Members. 

Agency 
Compensation 

Daily, per Board 
Mtg. 

Committee Mtg. 

Santa Margarita Water District $ 210.00 $ 210.00 
Casitas Municipcal Water District $ 217.82 $ 217.82 
Calleguas Municipal Water District $ 227.00 $ 227.00 
Meiner's Oaks Water District $ 250.00 $ 250.00 
West Basin Municipal Water District $ 270.70 $ 270.70 
East Municipal Water District $ 245.00 $ 245.00 
Orange County Water District $ 315.00 $ 315.00 
Santa Clara Valley Water District $ 331.86 $ 331.86 

AVERAGE $ 258.42 $ 258.42   

Ventura River Water District $ 160.00 $ 100.00 

Should the Board wish to pursue increasing Director compensation, the first step is to 
adopt Resolution 2023-356 to set a Public Hearing for public comment.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Adoption of the resolution to set a public hearing will cost an estimated $300 to advertise 
for two consecutive weeks in the newspaper. 

Attachments: 
8A – Resolution 2023-356 
8B – Public Hearing Notice 

Agenda Packet - Page 72 of 112



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-356 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE TIME AND PLACE OF A PUBLIC HEARING FOR 
INCREASING COMPENSATION AUTHORIZED TO BE PAID TO THE DIRECTORS 

OF VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20201, the governing board of a water 
district may, by ordinance adopted pursuant to Division 10, Chapter 2 of the Water Code and in 
accordance with Section 20202 thereof, increase the compensation received by members of the 
governing board for each day’s attendance at meetings of the board or for each day’s service 
rendered as a member of the board by request of the board; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 20202, in any such ordinance increasing the 
amount of compensation which may be received by members of the governing board, the increase 
may not exceed an amount equal to five percent (5%) for each calendar year since the effective 
date of the last increase; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of compensation authorized to be paid to the members of the 
Board of Directors of Ventura River Water District Board was last adjusted by Ordinance 2006-
208 adopted on February 8, 2006; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors now wishes to consider an increase to the amount of 
compensation authorized to be paid to the members of the Board; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing must be held to discuss a proposed ordinance adjusting such 
compensation.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Ventura River 
Water District as follows: 

1. A public hearing will be conducted for the purpose of hearing all interested parties as to
increasing the compensation authorized to be paid to the Board of Directors of Ventura
River Water District.

2. The date and time for said hearing is hereby fixed as July 19, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.

3. The public hearing may be attended in person at the Ventura River Water District office
located at 409 Old Baldwin Road, Ojai, CA 93023.

4. The public hearing may also be attended via videoconference or teleconference.
To attend the public hearing via videoconference:

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82218039151?pwd=R1VsMWN2UUJUQm00dW5wM
W84NDlJUT09#success   
Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151  
Password: 964370 

ATTACHMENT 8A

Agenda Packet - Page 73 of 112



 

 

 
To attend via teleconference: 

 
Dial: (888) 788-0099 or (877) 853-5247 Toll Free 
Enter Meeting ID: 984 1485 4813#  
Enter Passcode: 757052# 

 
5. The Secretary is hereby directed to give notice of said hearing by publishing notice of 

the time and place of the hearing as required by law. 
 
ADOPTED this 21st day of June 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:       Attest:  
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Ed Lee, President     Bert J. Rapp, Secretary 

ATTACHMENT 8A

Agenda Packet - Page 74 of 112



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT 

POTENTIAL INCREASE IN COMPENSATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on July 19, 2023 at 2:00 p.m., the Board of Directors of the 
Ventura River Water District will hold a public hearing in order to receive oral and written testimony 
regarding the proposed adoption of an ordinance increasing the compensation received by 
members of the Board for each day’s attendance at meetings of the Board, or for each day’s 
service rendered as a member of the Board by request of the Board. Director compensation has 
not been adjusted since 2006. The hearing will be held in person and via Zoom by phone and 
videoconference. The meeting will take place at 409 Old Baldwin Road, Ojai, CA 93023. To join 
via Zoom, scan the QR code below or visit 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82218039151?pwd=R1VsMWN2UUJUQm00dW5wMW84NDlJUT09
#success and enter the Meeting ID: 822 1803 9151 and Password: 964370. To join by phone, 
dial 1-888-788-0099 and enter the Meeting ID: 984 1485 4813# and Password: 757052#.  

Written comments may be filed at any time prior to conclusion of the public hearing. Those desiring 
to orally comment may do so during the hearing. Written comments should be addressed to the 
attention of the Board Secretary, at the above-mentioned address. 

Upon conclusion of the hearing, the Board will consider adoption of a proposed ordinance which 
would increase the amount of compensation for members of the Board of Directors.  A copy of 
the proposed ordinance will be posted in the District’s office at least five (5) days before the 
meeting where the ordinance will be considered. Copies of the ordinance will also be available at 
that time by calling the District at (805) 646-3403 or at the District’s web site: 
www.venturariverwd.com. 

ATTACHMENT 8B

Agenda Packet - Page 75 of 112



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 76 of 112



DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: AMENDMENTS TO PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING CONTRACT 

SUMMARY 
Amendments to the Phoenix Civil Engineering Contract are in need of Board approval to 
extend original contract dated 4/27/2018, redistribute unspent subcontractor funding for 
engineering design and approve Task Order #21 to separate out the Tico plans.  

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that: 

1. The Board authorize the General Manager to execute an amendment to extend
the current consulting services contract with Phoenix Civil Engineering for an
additional four years, with an option to extend the contract further for two
additional one-year periods, and

2. Approve redistribution of unspent funds from the subconsultant fee proposals, and
3. Approve Task Order #21 to bifurcate engineering plans for Tico from the 2023

Water Projects in the amount of $8,800.

BACKGROUND 
On April 27, 2018, the General Manager executed a Consulting Services Contract with 
Phoenix Civil Engineering for five years. The contract is set to expire on July 1, 2023. The 
contract provides for professional services such as but not limited to surveying, design, 
analysis, plan checking, inspection and project management services, as provided in 
specific “Task Orders” signed by the parties. To date a total of 20 Task Orders have been 
approved by the Board and signed by the parties.  

Phoenix Engineering provides quality engineering services and is currently working on 
the (1) 2023 Water Projects, (2) annexation of Tico Mutual Water Company, and (3) the 
Solar Project. The first two projects will be funded primarily through the California Division 
of Drinking Water’s State Revolving Fund (SRF). To maintain project continuity as staff 
navigates the SRF process, staff recommends extending the contract for four additional 
years, with the option to extend the contract further for two additional one-year periods. 

During the design phase of the 2023 Water Projects, funding was allocated to specific 
subconsultants. The subconsultants have completed their work and came in $20,985 
under budget. The 2023 Water Projects include the Tico improvements.  

The Division of Drinking Water has offered an Expedited Drinking Water Grant Funding 
for Tico to provide early authorization for the Tico work to move forward more quickly than 
the incentive project work. To implement the accelerated schedule the two projects need 
to be separated.  Separating the projects will require additional effort and expense from 
Phoenix Civil Engineering, SRF staff indicate this will be an eligible expense under the 
grant program for Tico.  

Agenda Packet - Page 77 of 112



Amendments to Phoenix Contract 
Page 2 of 2 

Task Order #21 in the amount of $8,800 is expected to adequately cover the additional 
effort needed to separate the Tico improvements from the 2023 Water Projects 
improvements.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
This work is budgeted in Account #13098. There is no change to the contract amount of 
$645,267 as funding is only being redistributed from unspent subcontractor monies to 
other tasks.  

Attachments: 
9A – Amendment #1 to Phoenix Civil Engineering 
9B – Phoenix Proposal 
9C – Task Order #21 
9D – 2018 Consulting Services Contract 

Agenda Packet - Page 78 of 112



Consulting Services Agreement 
VRWD / Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc. 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT 
(Ventura River Water District and Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc.) 

This Amendment No. 1 to Consulting Services Contract (this “Amendment”) is made and 
entered into on this 21st day of June 2023, by and between the Ventura River Water District, a 
California Special District (“District”), and Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc., a California 
corporation (“Consultant”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District and Consultant are parties to that certain Consulting Services 
Contract dated as of April 24, 2018 (the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement is currently scheduled to expire on July 1, 2023; 
and 

WHEREAS, District and Consultant desire to extend the term of the Agreement as 
provided in this Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, Consultant and District agree to amend the Agreement as follows:  

1. Extension of Term: The term of the Agreement is hereby extended until July 1,
2026, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement. The term of 
the Agreement may be further extended for two (2) additional one (1) year periods upon the written 
agreement of District (acting through its General Manager) and Consultant.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their duly authorized representatives 
to execute this Amendment on the dates set forth below. 

“District” “Consultant” 

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT PHOENIX CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC. 

By: ______________________________ By: ____________________________ 
Bert J. Rapp, General Manager        Jon Turner, Principal Engineer 

Date:______________________________ Date: ___________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ________________________________ 
 Stuart Nielson, Legal Counsel 

Date:______________________________ 

ATTACHMENT 9A

Agenda Packet - Page 79 of 112



Mr. Bert Rapp, PE 

General Manager June 9, 2023 

Ventura River Water District 

409 Old Baldwin Rd 

Ojai, CA 93023 

Ventura River Water District – VRWD 2023 Water Projects – Request for Fee Amendment for 

Engineering Design Services 

Dear Bert, 

During the design of the 2023 Water Projects, additional design effort and coordination was necessary for 

the exhibits and preliminary design reports.  The potholing portion of the project also required additional 

time for District and Contractor coordination.  The District has also requested that the Tico portion of the 

project plans and specifications be separated from the larger project in order to take advantage of a 

possible State funding program.  This additional effort involves additional hours and fee for Phoenix Civil 

Engineering, Inc (Phoenix) than what was proposed.  There are sufficient funds remaining in the unused 

budget from the subconsultants to cover the additional effort.  Phoenix is proposing a redistribution of 

funds from the subconsultant fee proposals. No increase in overall budget is needed.  The additional tasks 

below will be covered by the fee redistribution: 

• Additional coordination and planning for potholing.

• Multiple iterations for Casitas of new vault location.

• Additional Exhibits and revisions for the Preliminary Design Reports for

SRF submittal.

• Tico Project as a separate set of plans and specifications

The requested fee distribution amendment totals $20,985.  The revised project fee would free funds

from the following subconsultants to be used for Phoenix: 

Task 1.1 Benner & Carpenter  $17,222.50 

Task 1.2 Yeh and Associates  $3,012.50 

Task 1.6 Pacific Coast Land Design $750.00 

• Original Contract Amount $657,565.00 

• Fee Amendment #1, VFD’s at Parker $16,701.00 

• Fee Amendment #2, Move Casitas turnout to La Paz $39,096.00 

• Fee Amendment #3, Delete Monte Via and Catalina -($83,287.00) 

• Fee Amendment #4, NEPA $15,192.00 

• Fee Amendment #5, Reallocate funds from subconsultants to Phoenix work No Change 

• Total Revised Contract Amount $645,267.00 

(Cost = $8,800)

ATTACHMENT 9B

Agenda Packet - Page 80 of 112



Mr. Bert Rapp. PE June 9, 2023 

If the review process goes smoothly through the State Revolving Loan Program the current contract 

amount of $645,267 should be sufficient.  Please let me know if you would like to discuss. 

Sincerely, 

___________________________ 

Jon Turner, PE 

Principal Engineer 

ATTACHMENT 9B

Agenda Packet - Page 81 of 112



Task Order # 21 

2023 Water Projects – Separate Tico Mutual 
Water Company Improvements 

Scope of Work: 
Separate the Tico Mutual Water portion of the project plans and specifications from the larger 

2023 Water Projects to take advantage of State’s Expedited Drinking Water Grant Funding.  

Schedule: 

Complete analysis concurrently with application for SRF Funding to the State for the Tico 

Mutual Water Company Consolidation Project. 

Fees and Payment: 

Total fees for Task Order #21 are $8,800, which remains within the original contract amount of 

$645,267 and will not increase at this time. 

____________________________  __________________ 

Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager Date 

ATTACHMENT 9C

Agenda Packet - Page 82 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

1 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 83 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

2 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 84 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

3 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 85 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

4 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 86 of 112



 

Consultant Agreement
Page 11

5 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 87 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

6 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 88 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

7 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 89 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

8 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 90 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

9 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 91 of 112



Consultant Agreement
Page 11

10 of 12

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 92 of 112



 

Mr. Bert Rapp, PE April 24, 2018 
General Manager 
Ventura River Water District 
409 Old Baldwin Road 
Ojai, CA 93023 

Ventura River Water District – Proposal for Design Review Services for Valley Meadow Drive 
Pipeline Replacement Project 

Dear Bert- 

I am pleased to provide you with this proposal for design review services for Ventura River Water 
District (VRWD) for the Valley Meadow Drive Project.  The proposal covers providing final design 
support services to the District to review the existing plans and specifications and update them to include 
the District comments.  Based on our discussions, I have prepared my proposal to include the following: 

 Phase 1: Design Review 

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist you with this District project.  It is our 
understanding that this work will be authorized under a Professional Services Agreement incorporating 
the scope of work and fee shown. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss my proposal. 

Sincerely, 

 

______________________________ 
Jon Turner, PE 
Principal Engineer 

TASK ORDER #1

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 93 of 112



1 | P a g e  

SCOPE OF WORK 
Summary 
The project was originally envisioned to be a replacement of an existing 6-inch diameter 
pipeline (approximately 5,200 linear feet).  After completing the alignment study as part of the 
previous phase, the Board decided that the solution to the existing pipeline diameter 
restriction would be to design a dedicated 12-inch diameter transmission main from the Parker 
Booster Pump Station to the intersection of Alto Drive and Feliz Drive using open trench 
construction techniques.  A parallel distribution pipeline would be designed as either a 6- or 8-
inch diameter pipeline replaced or rehabilitated using pipe bursting or pipe lining. 

Subsequent to the approval of the alignment study, the General Manager recommended a 
more economically feasible project that still met the project objectives different than the 
recommended project.  The current project for the District includes only the following: 

 Design of approximately 350 linear feet of pipeline (12-inch diameter) on Feliz Drive. 

 Redesign of existing piping network at Valley Meadow Court to abandon facilities 
no longer needed as well as provide isolation between the two pressure zones. 

 Design of approximately 650 linear feet of 6- and 12-inch diameter pipeline from 
Parker Booster Pump Station discharge pipeline to Valley Meadow Drive across 
District and one or two private parcels depending on the alignment. 

Phase 1 – DESIGN REVIEW 
Task 1.1 – Finalize Design Submittal 
This task will include a review of the previously submitted plans and specifications as well as a 
site visit to Parker booster pump station and coordination with the current two property owner 
requests.  Once the information is gathered, the work products will be updated into a final set 
of plans, specifications and opinion of probable construction cost.  The final set of deliverables 
will be in a bid ready set format for the District to begin the construction bid advertising 
process.  Additionally, Padre Associates as a subconsultant to Phoenix will perform spring 
botanical monitoring as required by the project Mitigated Negative Declaration. 
Key team members associated with this task: 

Jon Turner and Sarah Watte (Phoenix Civil Engineering) 

Matt Ingamells (Padre Associates) 

THE FOLLOWING EFFORTS ARE IN THIS TASK: 
 Confirm and review project parameters details for the work. 
 Review plans and specifications, update as needed. 
 Conduct spring biological monitoring of the project alignment and work areas. 
 Finalize project plans and specifications for bid package. 

Deliverable:  One full size reproducible set of plans on bond (24x36), one unbound paper copy 
of project specifications, three bound copies of the project specifications, plans and 
engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost documents and one CD containing the 
design electronic files (AutoCAD Civil 3D 2016, MSWord and MSExcel files 2016) will be 
provided to the District. 

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 94 of 112



2 | P a g e  

Fee Schedule 
 The fee for this project shall be billed as time and materials, not to exceed $8,123.   

 Professional services shall be billed at the rates attached as Exhibit A.   

A project breakdown is as follows: 

Task 1.1 Finalize Design Submittal $8,123 

Total  $8,123 

Assumptions 
 The District will be responsible for payment of any fees associated with any required 

permits, regulatory inspections, or filings. 

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 95 of 112



Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc. 535 E. Main St, Santa Paula, CA 93060  805.658.6800 

   

Professional Services Hourly Rate Sheet 2017-18 

 

Engineering 

Principal Engineer $165 

Resident Engineer $150 

Professional Engineer $150 

Associate Engineer II $140 

Associate Engineer I $130 

Assistant Engineer $105 

CADD 

Senior Designer $120 

Assistant Designer $100 

General 

Construction Manager $145 

Construction Observer $105 

Technical Assistant $85 

Clerical/Administrative Assistant $55 

 

Costs associated with printing and computer time are calculated in the 
rates.  Large quantities of printing (multiple sets of specifications, reports, 
etc.) will be billed at the actual rate without markup.  Subconsultants will 
be marked up by 10%. 

 

ATTACHMENT 9D

Agenda Packet - Page 96 of 112



 

 
DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert Rapp, P.E., General Manager 

SUBJECT: UPCOMING BOARD VACANCY 
 

SUMMARY 

Director Nathan Rosser has notified the District that he would like to resign his position 
effective August 16, 2023. The Board needs to decide if they would like to (1) appoint 
someone to fill the vacant seat, or (2) call a special election (for the general election on 
March 5, 2024). In either case, the person would need to run in the November 5, 2024 
election cycle for Director Rosser’s seat. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

The General Manager recommends that the Board appoint a replacement implementing 
the following steps: 

 Direct staff to post a physical notice at a minimum of three locations and create a 
bill stuffer advertising the Board vacancy. 

 Establish an ad-hoc committee to interview potential candidates. 
 Select and appoint a person to fill the vacant Board seat at the September 20, 

2024 Board meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND 
When a District is notified of an upcoming vacancy, the remaining board members have 
60 days from the effective date of the vacancy, which falls on October 15, 2023, to fill the 
seat by either (1) appointment, or (2) calling a special election.  
 
Each of the options is explained in detail below. 
 
Option 1 - Appointment 
If the Board decides to appoint a replacement person, the remaining board members must 
make the appointment within 60 days of August 16, 2023, which falls on October 15, 
2023. The appointed candidate shall fill the balance of the unexpired term of their 
predecessor set to expire on December 6, 2024. If the appointed individual would like to 
remain on the Board beyond the expired term, they must run in the next general election 
taking place on November 5, 2024. 
 
A proposed appointment schedule is as follows: 
  

Agenda Packet - Page 97 of 112



Board Vacancy 
Page 2 of 2 

 June 22 – August 16 Post a vacancy notice  
(in 3 or more conspicuous places) 

 June 30 – July 15 Bill stuffer advertising position 
 July 17 - August 4 Board Sub-Committee interview 

interested candidates 
 August 9th Board committee selects a candidate 
 August 16th Board appoints a candidate 
 August 17th County Elections notified of appointee 

Option 2 – Call a Special Election 
In lieu of making an appointment the remaining members of the board may, within 60 
days of the effective date of the vacancy, call an election to fill the vacancy.  

The election shall be held at the next established election date that is 130 or more days 
after the date the district board calls the election. The County Elections Division has 
notified staff that the next established election will take place on March 5, 2024. The 
successful candidate could be seated at the April 2024 meeting. The elected Director 
would fill the unexpired term of the vacancy through December 6, 2024, and would have 
to run in the November 5, 2024 election.  

With this option the Board would operate with four Directors for about eight months and 
a quorum would still be required on all motions, ordinances and resolutions. 

The General Manager recommends appointing a qualified and interested individual by 
posting an advertisement in a minimum of three prominent locations, and creating a bill 
stuffer to advertise the vacancy. It is further recommended that an ad-hoc committee be 
formed to interview potential candidates and then the remaining Board members select a 
candidate to fill the vacancy.  

FISCAL SUMMARY 

Appointing a candidate will have costs associated with bill insert advertising of 
approximately $1,000 for two months. 

There is no cost associated with leaving the seat vacant until the next election, however 
participating in the March 5, 2024 election is estimated to cost $1,000 if uncontested 
and between $4,000 to $8,000 if contested. 

Attachments: 
10A – Bill Stuffer 
10B – Notice of Vacancy and Board Application 

Agenda Packet - Page 98 of 112



BOARD	OF	DIRECTORS—VACANCY	ANNOUNCEMENT	

Ventura River Water District (VRWD) has a pending Board of Directors vacancy and will be 

appoin ng someone. The VRWD Board makes decisions about water rates, system mainte-

nance, water quality, fire protec on, and water reliability. The term of office is 4-years. 

Board mee ngs are typically held once a month on the 3rd Wednesday of each month.  The 

appointment will take effect August 16th and the appointed person would need to run in 

the November 5th elec on. 

If you would like to be considered to serve as a Board Director for Ventura River Water Dis-

trict, please send the District a le er of interest and resume by e-mail to: 

Office@VenturaRiverWD.com or U.S. Mail to 409 Old Baldwin Rd, Ojai, CA 93023. Please 

by 4:30 p.m.  July 14, 2023. Thank you! 

Never doubt that a small group of thoughtful committed citizens can change the world.—Margaret Mead 

ATTACHMENT 10A

Agenda Packet - Page 99 of 112



NOTICE OF VACANCY 

Interested persons are hereby notified that pursuant 
to Government Code §1780 there is a vacancy on the: 

Board of Directors 

Applications are available at the  Ventura River Water District  

district office located at  

Phone:  

Website: 

Applications are due by:

This district board has 60 days from the date the board is notified of the vacancy or the 
effective date of the vacancy, whichever is later, to fill the vacancy by appointment or 
call a special election. Pursuant to Government Code §1780, this notice will be 
posted for 15 days in 3 or more conspicuous locations in the districts from June 22, 
2023 to August ______________ to ______________. 

409 Old Baldwin Road, Ojai, CA 93023
805-646-3403

venturariverwd.com

VENTURA RIVER WATER DISTRICT

The position to be filled is a 4-year term
ending December 2024

    July 15, 2023

ATTACHMENT 10B

Agenda Packet - Page 100 of 112



1 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT 
TO A SPECIAL DISTRICT VACANCY 

Instructions: If you are interested in serving on a special district Board of Directors, please complete 
this application and return it to: __________________________________________________ 

Date Due: 

Candidates will be interviewed by an Ad-Hoc Committee. You will be advised by the district board if 
your appointment is confirmed.  Thank you for your interest. 

District: ________________________________________________  Date: _____________________ 

Name: ________________________________________________  Age (optional): ______________ 

Residence Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Business or Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

Phone (Daytime): _________________________  Phone (Evening): _________________________ 

E-Mail: __________________________________________________________________________

Education
Institution Major Degree Year 

Work / Volunteer Experience 
Organization City Position From To 

409 Old Baldwin Rd, Ojai, CA 93023

July 15, 2023

ATTACHMENT 10B

Agenda Packet - Page 101 of 112



2 

Please briefly describe your qualifications and why you are interested in serving on the 
Board of Directors. 

CERTIFICATION: 

I certify that the information contained in this application is true and correct.  I authorize 
the verification of the information in this application. 

__________________________________ ___________________ 
Signature Date 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

ATTACHMENT 10B

Agenda Packet - Page 102 of 112



 

 

 
DATE: June 21, 2023  

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Bert J. Rapp, P.E. General Manager 

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION OF CHANGING MEETING TIME 
 
SUMMARY 
The District’s current meeting date and time is on the 3rd Wednesday of the month at 2:00 
PM. At the May 10, 2023 Board Meeting, Director Kuebler requested that the Board 
consider moving the start time from 2:00 pm to another time to facilitate public attendance.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
The General Manager recommends that the Board: 

1. Discuss potential Board meeting times. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Ventura River Water District was formed in August 14, 1956. In its 67-year history, the 
previous Board meeting times for the District have taken place at the following times: 
 
1969     7:30 PM 
1988     5:30 PM 
2014     3:00 PM 
2023     2:00 PM 
 
It is anticipated that all future Board meetings will be available to the public via video 
teleconference such as Zoom, as well as in person. Holding meetings on a Zoom platform 
provides an opportunity for the public to participate and provide feedback by being able 
to join the meeting remotely as the travel time is eliminated.  
 
Some directors feel that holding a meeting at 2 PM prevents most working persons from 
participating in a Board meeting if they are not able to join from a computer from their 
place of employment and feel it may be best to adjust the current meeting time.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no cost to the District to change the meeting time of the regular Board meeting.  
 
 

Agenda Packet - Page 103 of 112



 

 

 

THIS PAGE 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT 

BLANK 

Agenda Packet - Page 104 of 112



DATE: June 21, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Alma Quezada, P.G., Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: WATER AND DISTRICT UPDATE 

WELLS & PRODUCTION 

The static aquifer level at Well #2 on June 1, 2023, was at elevation 549.1 feet; the level 
decreased 1.4 feet since the first of last month. The aquifer is 17.6 feet above the 35-year average 
for June 1st.  

Well #1 is pumping 1,138 gpm, up 31 gpm from last month. Well #7 is pumping 896 gpm, down 
87 gpm from last month, Wells #2, #3, #4 and #6 were off-line in May. 

USAGE 

Sales dollars billed on May 31, 2023, amounted to $152,397, ($68,854) under budget for May. 
Last year we billed $215,805 during the same period. Water sold in May 2023 amounted to 20,241 
HCF, a decrease of 51% below the 54,146 HCF sold in May 2013.  

Charts are enclosed to depict the ground water status and water usage. On June 1, 2023, Lake 
Casitas level was at 73.7% of full capacity at elevation 541.54, with storage of 175,503 AF. The 
lake increased 1.1%, rose 1.3 feet and increased 2,709 AF since last month.  

ET adjustment:  The ET was reduced by 13% for the May 31st water bill because ET was below 
average for the period due to the cooler weather. This decreases the irrigation portion of the 
customer’s monthly water budget.  

ACTIVITIES 

Regulatory  
The Water Shortage Contingency Plan has been drafted and presented to the Board for 
consideration and adoption. 

Monthly Drought Reporting for May was submitted to the Division of Drinking Water. 

2023 Water Projects & Tico Annexation 
The Division of Drinking Water has completed their preliminary review of the applications 
submitted to the State and staff has responded with a request for more information. 

Solar Projects 
Edison has approved the Net Energy Metering eligibility for the Baldwin and Parker sites qualifying 
them to stay on the NEM 2.0 Rate Schedule.  We have until May 30, 2026 bring solar on line at 
Baldwin and Parker to secure the NEM 2.0 Rate Schedule.   

Agenda Packet - Page 105 of 112



Water & District Update 
Page 2 of 2 

Field Activities 
The electric meter at the Parker station was upgraded by SCE in anticipation of the solar array 
installation. The Baldwin meter was upgraded in April.  

Solar vents were installed on all the water tanks at the Baldwin, Parker and Alto. The solar vents 
will improve circulation to remove hot, humid air during the summer months. 

Weed abatement was completed at the Baldwin and Parker stations, including the removal of one 
dead oak tree and two palm trees. 

Septic to Sewer – Ojai Valley Sanitation District 
The Ojai Valley Sanitation District is looking into a program to help low-income areas on septic 
systems to connect to the sewer system.  This may affect two areas served by VRWD: (1) Casitas 
Springs and (2) the Trustee Lane neighborhood adjacent to the wells at 409 Old Baldwin Road. 
If the program moves forward, we will learn more in the coming year. 

Complaint Log 
Three customer complaints were logged during the month of May. The complaint log is included 
below. 

Agenda Packet - Page 106 of 112



50.0

25.9

31.4

20.7

30.1

53.0

13.3
12.4

29.3

15.4
17.1

6.9

3.6

27.1

31.9

37.8

14.2

46.6

28.2

19.0

45.5

9.8

22.2

29.5

13.3

17.7

26.8

34.4

23.8

8.8

25.8

16.1

32.0

17.5

13.6

4.2

13.8

5.0

16.8

23.0

14.9

31.3

11.1

18.4
16.9

46.2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

1
97

8
1

97
9

1
98

0
1

98
1

1
98

2
1

98
3

1
98

4
1

98
5

1
98

6
1

98
7

1
98

8
1

98
9

1
99

0
1

99
1

1
99

2
1

99
3

1
99

4
1

99
5

1
99

6
1

99
7

1
99

8
1

99
9

2
00

0
2

00
1

2
00

2
2

00
3

2
00

4
2

00
5

2
00

6
2

00
7

2
00

8
2

00
9

2
01

0
2

01
1

2
01

2
2

01
3

2
01

4
2

01
5

2
01

6
2

01
7

2
01

8
2

01
9

2
02

0
2

02
1

2
02

2
2

02
3

In
ch

es
 o

f 
R

ai
n

Rain Year

Historic Annual Rainfall - At VRWD Office

Average = 22.35" 

June 1, 2023

Agenda Packet - Page 107 of 112



28.9

11.6
8.6 9.1

10.3 12.0

28.0

11.2

27.3

17.0

6.1

16.9

46.2

544.0

514.8

553.0

525.5

535.9

530.1

494.6

515.5

479.5

507.9

481.7

503.8

472.2

491.8

469.1

545

491.1

533.8

522

533.3

517.4

526.4

491.5

530.0

498.7

529.2

555.4

549.1

72 %

86 %

81 %

60%

35.1%

43.8%

34.6%

30.4%

45.0%

41.2%

44.9%

32.3%

35.0%

29.8%

67.4%

72.6%

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

410

430

450

470

490

510

530

550

570

Ju
ne

‐1
0

D
ec

em
be

r‐
10

Ju
ne

‐1
1

D
ec

em
be

r‐
11

Ju
ne

‐1
2

D
ec

em
be

r‐
12

Ju
ne

‐1
3

D
ec

em
be

r‐
13

Ju
ne

‐1
4

D
ec

em
be

r‐
14

Ju
ne

‐1
5

D
ec

em
be

r‐
15

Ju
ne

‐1
6

D
ec

em
be

r‐
16

Ju
ne

‐1
7

D
ec

em
be

r‐
17

Ju
ne

‐1
8

D
ec

em
be

r‐
18

Ju
ne

‐1
9

D
ec

em
be

r‐
19

Ju
ne

‐2
0

D
ec

em
be

r‐
20

Ju
ne

‐2
1

D
ec

em
be

r‐
21

Ju
ne

‐2
2

D
ec

em
be

r‐
22

Ju
ne

‐2
3

D
ec

em
be

r‐
23

Ra
in
 ‐

In
ch

es

El
ev

at
io

n 
Ab

ov
e 

Se
a 

Le
ve

l

Chart 9VENTURA RIVER UPPER BASIN & LAKE CASITAS LEVELS 
JUNE 1, 2023                                          

hhihhihhihhi

Lake Casitas Level

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

Probable Limit of Aquifer

hhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhihhi

hhi

Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Level

Aquifer Full

Agenda Packet - Page 108 of 112



0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

U
ni

ts
 o

f W
at

er
, H

CF

VRWD TOTAL SYSTEM DEMANDS 

2013 2020 2021 2022 2023

2023

Chart 3

Agenda Packet - Page 109 of 112



CHART # 2

549.1 ft

-119

-99

-79

-59

-39

-19

445

465

485

505

525

545

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g

S
e

p
t

O
c

t

N
o

v

D
ec

E
le

va
tio

n 
[f

ee
t]

, a
m

sl

WATER LEVEL HYDROGRAPH

AQUIFER LEVEL FROM REFERENCE VRWD WELL # 2, FIRST DAY OF THE MONTH

2016 2020 2021 2022 2023 30 Yr AVG

Well #2 & 4 Shut Off Elev. 497

Sounding Pipe Elevation = 565.11

Well #3 Shut Off Elev 487

2020

35‐Yr Average

Aquifer Full at 551.7 feet

Start Nitrate Blending Elev 472
2016

Bottom of Aquifer Elev 450

2021

2022

June 1, 2023

Agenda Packet - Page 110 of 112



$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Water Revenues
FY 2022/2023

Budgeted Water Revenue Year to date Actual Water Revenue Year to date

Revenue is 22% under
Budget for the Year

Chart 8

Agenda Packet - Page 111 of 112



0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

U
ni

ts
 o

f W
at

er
 U

se
d

Water Usage
FY 2022/2023

Budgeted Water Usage Actual Water Usage

Usage is 17% under 
Budget for the Year.

Agenda Packet - Page 112 of 112


	Agenda 2023-6-21 June
	Item 3a - 2023-05-10 Minutes Special Meeting
	Item 3b - April 2023 Financials
	May Online_Payment_Spreadsheet
	Check Register May
	IS April
	BS Apri
	April Status_Of_Capital_Improvement_Projects (2)

	Item 3b - March 2023 Financials
	Item 4 - Waive Separate Service Line - 64 Calle Vista del Monte--SGN Rev
	Item 4a - Correspondence 64 Calle Vista del Monte
	Item 5- FY 23-24 FINAL Budget Adoption
	Item 5a - Budget 23-24 DRAFT 6-15-2023
	Item 5b - 10-year CIP
	Item 5c - 10-Year funds available Chart V2
	Item 6 - Casitas Mutual Request to Consolidate
	Item 7 - Adopt Water Shortage Contingency Plan
	Item 7a -  VRWD Water Shortage Contingency Plan_CLEAN
	Item 7b - Resolution 2023-355 Water Shortage Contingency Plan_draft--SGN Rev 6.7.2023
	Item 8 - Adopt Resolution 2023-357 Public Hearing Director Compensation-SGN Rev
	Item 8a - Resolution 2023-356 Set Time & Place of Public Hearing to Increase Director Compensation-SGN Rev
	Item 8b - Public Hearing Notice-SGN Rev
	Item 9 - Amendments to Phoenix Civil Engineering Contract
	Item 9a - Amendment No. 1 to Phoenix Contract-SGN Rev (Clean)
	Item 9b - Amendment 5 Shift Sub Consult Money
	Item 9c - Task Order #21 Separate Tico Improvments
	Item 9d - Consulting Agreement - Phoenix  VRWD signed
	Item 10 - Board Vacancy
	Item 10a - Bill Stuffer Announcement
	Item 10b - Board Application & Notice of Vacancy
	Item 11 - Discussion of Changing Board Meeting Time
	Item 13 - Water & District Status Update
	Item 13a - All charts
	C2 - Hydrograph
	C3 - System Demands
	C4 - Annual Rain June 2023
	C7 - Actual vs Budget usage
	C8 - Revenue vs Expenses
	C9 - Aquifer & Lake Levels




